
 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.leicestershire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Health and Wellbeing Board  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Thursday, 11 July 2019 at 2.00 pm 

Location: Guthlaxton Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield 

Contact: Mr. Matthew Hand (Tel: 0116 305 2583) 

Email: matthew.hand@leics.gov.uk 

 
Membership 

 
Mr. L. Breckon JP CC (Chairman) 

 
Mr. R. Blunt CC 

Sue Elcock 
Karen English 
Sarah Hughes 

Cllr. J. Kaufman 
Dr Andy Ker 
Cllr. P. King 

Harsha Kotecha 
Dr Mayur Lakhani 

DPCC Kirk Master 
Jane Moore 

 

Mr. I. D. Ould OBE CC 
Mike Sandys 
Frances Shattock 
John Sinnott 
Micheal Smith 
Ch. Supt Adam Streets 
Jane Toman 
Caroline Trevithick 
Mark Wightman 
Jon Wilson 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
Item   Report by   

 
1.  

  
Minutes of the meeting held on 30 May 2019 
and Action Log.  
 

 
 

(Pages 5 - 14) 

2.  
  

To advise of any other items which the 
Chairman has decided to take as urgent 
elsewhere on the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

3.  
  

Declarations of interest in respect of items on 
the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

4.  
  

Position Statement by the Chairman.  
 
 
 

 
 

 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works


 
 
 
 

 Strategy 
 

 Health and Care in the Place. 
 

5.  
  

Development of Primary Care Networks 
Across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland.  
 

West 
Leicestershire and 
East Leicestershire 
and Rutland CCG 
 

(Pages 15 - 40) 

6.  
  

Integrated Community Workstream and 
Community Services Redesign.  
 

West 
Leicestershire and 
East Leicestershire 
and Rutland CCG 
 

(Pages 41 - 54) 

7.  
  

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment - Air Quality 
and Health.  
 

Director of Public 
Health 
 

(Pages 55 - 60) 

8.  
  

Strategic Partnership Board Update.  
 

Director of 
Children and 
Family Services 
 

(Pages 61 - 66) 

9.  
  

Progress of the Health and Social Care Sector 
Growth Plan 2017-2020.  
 

Director of Adults 
and Communities 
 

(Pages 67 - 76) 

10.  
  

Better Care Fund Plan 2019/20.  
 

Director of Health 
and Care 
Integration 
 

(Pages 77 - 88) 

 Prevention in the Place. 
 

11.  
  

Leicestershire Social Prescribing Model 
Update.  
 

Director of Public 
Health 
 

 

 A PowerPoint Presentation will be considered during this item. 

 
 

12.  
  

New Multi- Agency Children's Safeguarding 
Arrangements.  
 

Director of 
Children and 
Family Services 
 

(Pages 89 - 
124) 

 Wider Determinants of Health. 
 

13.  
  

County Lines and Child Criminal Exploitation.  
 

Director of 
Children and 
Family Services 
 

(Pages 125 - 
130) 

 Performance: Placed Based Outcomes. 
 

14.  
  

Actions Arising from the Agreed Outcomes of 
the Health and Wellbeing Board Development 
Session Held on 30 November 2018.  
 

Director of Health 
and Care 
Integration 
 

(Pages 131 - 
146) 

15.  
  

Healthwatch Leicestershire Annual Review.  
 
 
 
 

Healthwatch 
 

(Pages 147 - 
176) 



 
 
 
 

16.  
  

Date of Future Meetings.  
 

 
 

 

 Future meetings of the Health and Wellbeing Board will be held at 
2.00pm on the following dates:- 
 
26 September 2019 
28 November 2019 
23 January 2020 
19 March 2020 
28 May 2020 
9 July 2020 
24 September 2020 
26 November 2020 
 

 

17.  
  

Any other items which the Chairman has 
decided to take as urgent.  
 

 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held at County Hall, Glenfield on 
Thursday, 30 May 2019.  
 

PRESENT 
 

 
Leicestershire County Council 
 
Mr. I. D. Ould OBE CC   Jane Moore 
Mrs C. M. Radford CC   Jon Wilson 
Mike Sandys      
 
Clinical Commissioning Groups 
  
Paul Gibara 
Caroline Trevithick 
Dr Andy Ker 
Dr Mayur Lakhani 
 
Leicestershire District and Borough Councils 
 
Cllr. J. Kaufman 
Jane Toman  
 
In attendance 
 
Mark Wightman                University Hospital of Leicester 
Harsha Kotecha                Healthwatch 
 
Apologies 
 
Mr. L. Breckon CC, Mr. R. Blunt CC, Sue Elcock, Karen English, Sarah Hughes, 
DPCC Kirk Master, Cllr Alan Pearson, Frances Shattock, John Sinnott, Micheal Smith 
and Supt Natalee Wignal 
 
 

148. Appointment of Chairman  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the appointment of Mr L. Breckon JP CC as Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board be noted. 
 

149. Appointment of Vice Chairman.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the appointment of Dr Mayur Lakhani, as Vice Chairman of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board be noted. 
 

5 Agenda Item 1



 
 

 

Dr Mayur Lakhani - in the Chair 
 

 
150. Minutes of the previous meeting and Action Log.  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 14 March 2019 were taken as read, confirmed and 
signed. 
 
The Board also noted the Action Log, which provided an update on actions agreed by the 
Board at its previous meetings. 
 

151. Urgent items.  
 
There were no urgent items for consideration. 
 

152. Declarations of interest.  
 
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of 
items on the agenda for the meeting. No declarations were made. 
 

153. Position Statement by the Chairman.  
 
The Chairman presented a position statement on the following matters:- 
 

 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

 BCF Outcomes Metrics 

 Mental Health Investment Standards 

 Fall in Leicestershire Teenage Pregnancy Figures 

 Dementia Action Week 

 5 Ways to Wellbeing 

 Good Food Leicestershire 

 Infection Prevention Control·          
 
A copy of the position statement is filed with these minutes. 
 

154. Leicestershire Children and Families Partnership Plan 2018 - 2021 Progress Update.  
 
The Board considered a report of the Director of Children and Families which provided a 
progress update on the Leicestershire Children and Families Partnership Plan 2018 – 
2021. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda item 7’ is filed with these minutes.  
 
The Director reported that since the launch of the Plan in September 2018, priority leads 
had been working closely with partners and stakeholders to deliver against each of the 
five priority areas and significant progress had been made.  
 
Members welcomed the detailed progress update, which not only illustrated the progress 
made, but also the potential issues which could affect further progress. In reference to 
those future risks highlighted within the appendix of the report, the Director confirmed that 
work was ongoing to ensure a joined up approach was taken wherever possible and 
partners remained committed to the Plan and the Partnership which had enabled those 
involved to own and address key issues.  
 

6



 
 

 

In reference to the work on Adverse Childhood Experiences, the Director said that the 
Partnership recognised the severe impact such experiences had on individuals and the 
influence it had on behaviours as they grew older. The Partnership was therefore 
developing its own trauma based approach shaped through feedback from stakeholders 
and best practice from other authorities which had implemented an approach.  
 
In response to questions concerning the partnership’s other focus areas, the Director 
confirmed that the ‘Future in Mind’ service was being used as a framework in which to 
develop its approach to children’s mental health services, whilst messages concerning 
healthy eating and the risks of obesity continued to be emphasised as part of the ‘To 
make obesity everyone’s business’ focus area.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

155. Summary of Leicestershire and Rutland Locality Profiles.  
 
The Board considered a report of the Director of Public Health which provided a summary 
of health related data at a locality level and an update on the development of Primary 
Care Network profiles. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda item 8’ is filed with these 
minutes.  
 
Arising from discussion the following points were noted: 
 

 Analysis of the data enabled partners to highlight areas where health performance 
could be improved. It was therefore important that commissioners considered the 
findings carefully when deciding upon their focus areas; 
 

 The Syston, Long Clawson and Melton (SLAM) locality had been formed based on 
long standing historical working relationships between medical practices. The 
majority of the other localities mirrored Leicestershire’s district boundaries; 
 

 The formation of Primary Care Networks would mean the 10 current localities in 
Leicestershire would be reformed into a larger number of networks. More 
information concerning the geography of these networks would be available in the 
coming months;  
 

 Whilst the national data used to compare the indicator performance was several 
years old, partners benefited from having a benchmark by which to measure local 
performance against national trends. Work was ongoing to produce comparative 
dashboards which could utilise more recent local data. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

a) That a further report be considered by the Board once the Primary Care Networks 
(PCN) locality profiles have been developed;  
 

b) That a report detailing the newly formed PCNs, including the geographical 
boundaries of each network, be considered by the Board at a future meeting. 
 

 

 

7



 
 

 

 

 
156. Unified Prevention Board Annual Report 2018/19.  

 
Members considered a report of the Unified Prevention Board (UPB) which detailed the 
UPB’s work in delivering the prevention offer, in conjunction with partners, across 
Leicestershire during the 2018/19 financial year. The report also included the Board’s 
plans and communications approach for the next financial year   A copy of the report 
marked ‘Agenda Item 9’ is filed with these minutes. 
 
The UPB’s delivery of a Healthy Workforce Programme, including the development of a 
web based Health Needs Assessment tool, had encouraged local organisations to further 
consider the health of their workforce. Members welcomed the work already undertaken 
and recognised the benefits such an approach had not only for employees, but also the 
organisations themselves. They noted that the UPB would look to further develop the 
programme during the next financial year and consider the benefits of implementing a 
system wide approach amongst LLR NHS partners.  
    
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

157. Leicestershire Social Prescribing and Care Coordination Models.  
 
The Board considered a report of the Director of Public Health which provided an update 
on progress made in Leicestershire to develop the existing social prescribing and care 
coordination models. The report also detailed potential options to further develop the 
models aligned with the NHS Long Term Plan. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda item 
10’ is filed with these minutes.  
 
Arising from discussion the following points were noted: 
 

 Whilst the ‘First Contact Plus’ service operated effectively as an initial access point 
for a range of social prescribing solutions, it was recognised that the help patients 
had access to often depended on where they lived within the County, with each 
district council’s delivery approach being tailored differently; 
 

 The newly formed Care Coordination Task and Finish Group would be exploring 
the types of support delivered through the social prescribing link offer (via link 
workers) compared with that of a care co-ordinator. It was important that the 
future model avoided duplication;   
 

 The NHS Long Term Plan (LTP) emphasised the importance of integrated care 
systems and there was therefore an opportunity to enhance the social prescribing 
offer via the newly formed Primary Care Networks (PCNs). Whilst an approach 
that followed the current social prescribing model would enable the established 
system to remain, the decisions regarding the employment of link workers would 
rest with PCN’s;  

 

 Whilst additional funding would be made available in 2019/20 from the NHS LTP in 
order for a social prescribing link worker to be employed by each PCN, national 
guidance was awaited with regards to how the funding would be spent and 
whether it would cover expenditure in addition to salary costs. Public Health 

8



 
 

 

officers would be attending PCN engagement events to understand the proposed 
arrangements further and report back to the Board once more was known.  

 
RESOLVED: 
 

a) That the development of the social prescribing and care coordination models 
across Leicestershire be supported, including identifying a systematic approach to 
embedding these roles into the existing social prescribing system (as detailed in 
paragraph 19 of the report), engagement with Primary Care Networks through 
planned engagement events and the newly established care coordination task and 
finish group; 
 

b) That a further report detailing the funding arrangements for the revised model be 
considered by the Board at a future meeting. 
 

 
158. Better Care Fund Q4 2018/19 Performance.  

 
The Board considered a report of the Director of Health and Care Integration which 
provided an update on the Better Care Fund (BCF) Programme for 2018/19. A copy 
of the report marked ‘Agenda item 11’ is filed with these minutes.  
 
In reference to the BCF plan for 2019/20, concerns remained with regards to the 
delay in the publication of the technical guidance and information concerning the 
CCG minimum allocation into the pooled budget and the implications should the 
current funding arrangements not continue. An update would be provided to the 
Board once the information was made available.     
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the good performance across all of the four BCF outcome metrics and the 
positive progress made in transforming health and care pathways in 2018/19 be 
welcomed. 
 

159. Safeguarding Adult Board Development Plan 2019/20.  
 
The Board considered a report of the Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Adults 
Board which presented the Board’s Development Plan for 2019/20.  A copy of the report, 
marked ‘Agenda item 12’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
It was noted that the Board intended to work with organisations such as ‘The Bridge’ 
homeless centre in Leicester to understand how the regions support offer for the 
homeless and rough sleepers in Leicestershire and Rutland could be improved. It was 
noted that whilst the funding made available via the rapid rehousing pathway had helped, 
gaps in the support prevision remained. 
 
In reference to national plans to replace Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards with Liberty 
Protection Safeguards, it was noted that the changes, which would include the NHS 
replacing local authorities as the supervising body, would result in a significant shift in 
how local care providers worked to safeguard individuals who lacked capacity to consent 
to care and treatment. 
 
RESOLVED: 

9



 
 

 

 
That the Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Adult Board Development Plan for 
2019/20 be noted.  
 

160. Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Health Protection Assurance Report.  
 
The Board considered a report of the Director of Public Health which provided a summary 
of the assurance functions of the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Health Protection 
Board. The report also detailed the health protection performance, key incidents and 
other significant matters during 2018. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda item 13’ is 
filed with these minutes. 
 
The Director reported that poor air quality was the largest environmental risk to the 
public’s health. The Health and Wellbeing Board would be considering a Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment Chapter on the issue at its next meeting which would provide insight 
into its impact locally. In response to questions from members concerning the 
development of new roads and housing and their impact on air quality, the Director 
confirmed that unless a proposed development was within an ‘air management area’ 
there was not a requirement for the local planning authority to consider air pollution when 
granting applications. 
 
In reference to the uptake of the measles mumps and rubella vaccine, it was noted that 
the recent immunisation figures in Leicestershire were in line with the national average 
however, there still remained cohorts of older students, particularly those reaching 
university age, who had not been vaccinated. Efforts would continue to encourage those 
individuals to receive the vaccine.    
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the specific health protection issues that have arisen locally, the steps taken to 
manage them and the areas of focus for the coming year be noted. 
 

161. Date of next meeting.  
 
It was noted that the next meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board would be held on 
Thursday 11 July 2019. 
 

2.00 - 4.15 pm CHAIRMAN 
30 May 2019 

 

10



Health and Wellbeing Board Action Log

No. Date Action Responsible 

Officer

Comments Status

349(d) 05/01/17 Submit a report on the Local Digital Roadmap to 

a future meeting of the Health and Wellbeing 

Board.

Vikesh Tailor A report is scheduled for a future meeting of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board.

GREEN

367(c) 16/03/17 Request the Unified Prevention Board  to take 

forward Leicestershire specific work actions from 

the LLR Suicide Prevention Strategy and Action 

Plan and report back to the Health and 

Wellbeing Board when appropriate.

Mike Sandys Six monthly updates from the Unified Prevention 

Board are scheduled for the Health and Wellbeing 

Board.

GREEN

75(b) 24/05/18 That the Health and Wellbeing Board receives a 

report outlining the work undertaken in localities 

to support people with dementia.

Jane Toman A report will be provided to a future meeting of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

GREEN

92 (b) 12/07/18 That the Board consider a further update on the 

progress of the Health and Social Care Sector 

Growth Plan in 12 months time

Jon Willson A report will be provided to a future meeting of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

GREEN

119 (a) 29/11/18 That the Director of Public Health be asked to 

meet  with officers from the UHL to give further 

consideration to the targeted offer for secondary 

prevention;

Mike Sandys A report will be provided to a future meeting of the 

LLR STP Prevention Board. 

GREEN

119 © 29/11/18 That the Health and Wellbeing Board receive a 

report in 2019 on the development of locality 

profiles, specifically how these have supported 

Integrated Locality Teams to target interventions 

more effectively to the needs of local 

populations.

Mike Sandys A report will be provided to a future meeting of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

GREEN

1

11



Health and Wellbeing Board Action Log

No. Date Action Responsible 

Officer

Comments Status

120 29/11/18 That further analysis be undertaken to explore 

the responses to the GP Survey across the age 

demographic of those consulted to identify 

whether expectations of service provision 

altered depending on the patient’s age, and that 

the findings of this additional analysis be 

reported to members of the Health and 

Wellbeing Board and constituent CCGs.

Healthwatch The additional research has not yet been undertaken. 

Once available the information will be sent to Health 

and Wellbeing Board and constituent CCGs.

GREEN

122 29/11/18 That the outcome of the review of joint funded 

packages be reported to a future meeting of the 

Board.

East Leics CCG A report will be provided to a future meeting of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

GREEN

123 29/11/18 That the Health and Wellbeing Board consider a 

report at a future meeting which explores work 

being undertaken by Local Authorities and 

Leicestershire and Rutland Sport and other 

partners to encourage increased levels of 

physical activity.

Mike Sandys A report will be provided to a future meeting of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

GREEN

134 24/01/19

That a copy of the Unified Prevention Board 

Communication Plan be shared with members of 

the Health and Wellbeing Board once finalised.

Mike Sandys The Communications Plan will be considered at the 

next Unified Prevention Board on 12 March. In May 

the UPB will be asked to consider the campaign 

concepts, any upcoming barriers and opportunities. 

An update on those discussions will be provided to 

members of the Health and Wellbeing Board in May.  

In July the UPB and Health and Wellbeing Board will 

be asked to approve the campaign materials and  

next steps.

GREEN

140 14/03/19 That a report concerning the promotion of active 

design within new county housing developments 

be considered at a future meeting of the Health 

and Wellbeing Board.

Mike Sandys A report will be provided to a future meeting of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

GREEN

2

12



Health and Wellbeing Board Action Log

No. Date Action Responsible 

Officer

Comments Status

142 14/03/19 That a report detailing the work of the Strategic 

Partnership Board and the People Zones Project 

be considered at a future meeting of the Health 

and wellbeing Board.

Jane Moore A report will be considered at the Board's meeting in 

July 

GREEN

155a 30/05/19 That a report concerning locality profiles be 

considered by the Board once the Primary Care 

Networks (PCN) locality profiles have been 

developed; 

Mike Sandys A report will be provided to a future meeting of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

GREEN

155b 30/05/19 That a report detailing the newly formed PCNs, 

including the geographical boundaries of each 

network, be considered by the Board 

Tim Sacks A report will be considered at the Board's meeting in 

July 

GREEN

157b 30/05/19 That a further report detailing the funding 

arrangements for the revised model be 

considered by the Board at a future meeting.

Mike Sandys An update will be provided to the Board at its meeting 

in July 

GREEN

3

13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



A partnership between: 

East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG 

West Leicestershire CCG 

  

 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 11TH JULY 2019 

 

REPORT OF EAST LEICESTERSHIRE AND RUTLAND CCG AND WEST 

LEICESTERSHIRE CCG 

 

DEVELOPMENT OF PRIMARY CARE NETWORKS ACROSS  

LEICESTER, LEICESTERSHIRE AND RUTLAND  

 

 

Purpose of report 

 

1. The purpose of this report is to update the Health and Wellbeing Board with the 

progress of Primary Care Network (PCN) development across Leicester, Leicestershire 

and Rutland (LLR). The report will give a description of PCNs, their purpose and role 

and explain the progress that has been made towards forming PCNs across LLR.  

 

Background 

 

Description of primary care networks 

 

2. A primary care network is a group of GP practices that agree to work together with 

other practices in their local area to provide the care patients need, in better ways. By 

working together, it is expected they will be able to make resources go further and care 

for patients more creatively. 

3. Each PCN will look after between 30,000 and 50,000 patients, but there may be some 

with more or less patients than that. 

4. GP practices will remain independent. Patients will continue to be registered at their 

existing GP practice and it will still be the main point of contact for their care.  

5. GP practices will work with other health, social care and voluntary sector professionals 

to plan and join up patients’ care. These wider teams will include pharmacists, district 

nurses and specialists who care for certain types of conditions or groups of patients 

with particular needs. 

6. PCNs will launch on 1 July 2019 and over time are expected to bring a number of 

benefits for patients: 

 Joined up services – All health professionals know previous interactions 

 Access to a wider range of professionals and diagnostics in the community - 

in a single appointment 

15 Agenda Item 5



 

 Different ways of getting advice and treatment, including digital, telephone 

based and physical services, matched to their individual needs 

 Shorter waiting times and convenient  appointments  

 Greater patient involvement in decisions about their care 

 Increased focus on prevention and personalised care 

 

7. Each primary care network will decide how it will provide care for its patients. For 

example, sometimes a health professional may work for a particular practice or will 

support patients in all practices in the PCN. There may also be times when a patient 

will receive their appointment at one of the other practices in the network – particularly 

if they have a non-urgent need or that practice specialises in an area of care they need. 

8. A much wider team of health professionals is increasingly becoming involved in 

patients’ care in GP practices. Through primary care networks there will be more 

clinical pharmacists, physiotherapists, physician associates, community paramedics 

and social prescribing link workers. 

 

Why primary care networks are being created 

 

9. Primary care networks are part of NHS England’s Long Term Plan, published in 

January 2019. They have been put in place to improve and extend the range of care 

that is available in the community and join up the care that is provided from different 

organisations. 

 

Role of PCNs in an Integrated Care System  

 

10. In its Long Term Plan, NHS England made a commitment to deliver Integrated Care 

Systems (ICS) by April 2021. This means more collaborative system working between 

GP practices, health partners, social care, voluntary sector and local authorities. The 

purpose of an ICS is to build capability in the system and improve services at three 

levels: 

 System 

 Place  

 Neighbourhood (locality/network level) 

 

11. PCNs will become the basis for neighbourhoods, defined populations and geographies, 

around which integrated care between local hospitals and local authorities, primary 

care, community health and the third sector, can be planned and delivered.  

 

12. PCNs will be expected to play a significant role at all levels of the ICS: 

 Primary care networks will deliver integrated services to people in 

‘neighbourhoods’, as the foundation of an effective health system 

16



 

 In ‘places’ (Local Authority boundaries), primary care will interact with 

hospitals and local authorities, working together to meet the population’s 

needs (in some systems, federations could operate at the ‘place’ level to 

support primary care networks) 

 At the system level (LLR), primary care as a provider will increasingly 

participate in system decision making. Networks create an opportunity for 

primary care to have a greater voice in both the design and delivery of ‘place’ 

based care with hospitals and local authorities, than may have been feasible 

historically in arrangement of individual separate practices 

 

13. The Clinical Directors of PCNs will play a critical role in shaping and supporting the ICS 

and ensuring GP practices are fully engaged in implementing the Long Term Plan. 

Through PCNs, practices will play an even greater part in the wider system than they 

have previously. 

 

LLR PCN Developments 

 

14. Primary care networks were established on 1 July 2019. The clinical commissioning 

groups have been supporting GP practices to form into PCNs. 

 

15. PCN development has been supported by both CCGs and the Leicestershire and 

Rutland Local Medical Committee. GP Federations across both CCGs have also 

played a facilitative role, with particular focus on administration of some of the key PCN 

formation processes (e.g. election/appointment of PCN Accountable Clinical Director 

posts. 

 
16. In the Leicestershire County Council area there are 14 PCNs.  These range in size 

from 29,000 to 107,000.  The full list of these can be seen in Appendix 1 and the maps 

showing the constituent practices and boundaries can be seen for West Leicestershire 

East Leicestershire at the end of this document.  (Please note these maps are created 

from the mandated NHS system and are at times not clear. The maps will be re-

modelled before they are distributed to the wider public)    

 

PCN funding 

 

17.  By 2023/24, NHS England will make £891 million available to Primary Care. By 

2023/24 this equates to a settlement of £726,000 new annual funding for a PCN with 

an average-weighted population of 50,000. 

 

18. It is known that PCNs will receive new funding in three ways through a ‘Network 

Contract’: 

 Five new roles: PCNs will each receive funding to put in place five roles: clinical 

pharmacist, social prescribing link worker, community paramedic, 

17



 

physiotherapist and physician associate. The scheme extends gradually. This 

reflects available supply and funding:     

− in 2019 it starts with clinical pharmacists and social prescribing link workers 

only 

− in 2020 physician associates and first contact physiotherapists are added; 

and 

− in 2021 it also includes first contact community paramedics. 

 

 Seven key priority areas: Funding to carry out services in the seven key areas: 

structured medications review and optimisation, enhanced health in care homes, 

anticipatory care requirements for complex patients, personalised care, 

supporting early cancer diagnosis, CVD prevention and diagnosis, tackling 

neighbourhood inequalities 

 New shared savings scheme: PCNS are also expected to be able to benefit 

from a new ‘shared savings’ scheme resulting from system-wide efficiencies. For 

example, reducing avoidable A&E attendances, admissions and delayed 

discharge, streamlining patient pathways to reduce avoidable outpatient visits 

and preventing over-medication through pharmacist reviews. 

19. In addition, two existing funding streams will transfer to PCNs in the future: extended 

access services and community-based services.  

20. Full details relating to PCN funding is still to be published.  

 

Patient engagement 

 

21. During the summer of 2018, NHS England carried out a programme of engagement on 

the Long Term Plan, of which primary care networks are a part. 

22. The PCNs are being developed under very tight timescales. PCNs are expected to 

have engaged with their constituent Patient Participation Groups during their 

development to ensure patient views were taken into account.  

23. The clinical commissioning groups in Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland are 

embarking on a programme of engagement about the local primary care networks in 

June 2019, when they have been agreed. In February and April 2019 BBC Radio 

Leicester and BBC East Midlands featured primary care networks and the range of 

health professionals that will be involved in patients’ care. On 1st July 2019 NHSE 

formally Launched PCNs and BBC East Midlands covered the development through a 

feature in Rutland. 

24. Before making any changes to services, GP practices and primary care networks will 

be expected to engage with their patients. All GP practices should have a Patient 

Participation Group and they will continue to be involved in the running of the practice 

and the primary care network going forward. 

 

 

18



 

Next steps  

 

25. The clinical commissioning groups are continuing to work with GP practices to   

      finalise the development of the PCNs. Following this the CCGs will commence  

 engagement and communication with local patients and stakeholders in July 2019 to     

help them understand the changes and how they may be affected. 

 

26. During 2019/20 the clinical commissioning groups will continue to support the PCNs  

 as they develop and as more detail becomes available about what will be required in  

 the future. 

 
Background papers 
 
NHS Long Term Plan – https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/ 

 

Officer to Contact 

 

Tim Sacks, Chief Operating Officer  

Telephone: 0116 295 3413 

Email: tim.sacks@eastleicestershireandrutland.ccg.nhs.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

19

https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/
mailto:tim.sacks@eastleicestershireandrutland.ccg.nhs.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

WLCCG – North West Leicestershire (Neighbourhood 3), 27,724 Population   Accountable Clinical Director: Dr K Moore (Measham)

 

GP Practices  
C82007: Castle Donington Surgery 
C82045: Whitwick Road Surgery 
C82052: Drs Patel & Tailor (Whitwick HC) 
C82102: Manor House Surgery 
 C82120: Drs Virmani & Bedi (Whitwick HC) 

21



2 
 

WLCCG – Charnwood Soar Valley 49,863 Population     Accountable Clinical Director: Dr N Simpson (Barrow) 

 

GP Practices  
C82034: Quorn Medical Centre,  
Y00252: Cottage Surgery,  
C82600: The Banks Surgery,  
C82644: Highgate Surgery,  
C82097: Charnwood Surgery,  
C82095: Alpine House Surgery,  
C82062: Barrow Health Centre,  
C82032: Anstey Surgery 

22



3 
 

WLCCG – Charnwood Watermead 33,217 Population      Accountable Clinical Director: Dr A Rao (Thurmaston)

 

GP Practices  
C82678: Thurmaston Health Centre 
C82003: Greengate Medical Centre 
C82091: Birstall Medical Centre 
C82627: Silverdale Medical Centre 
C82657: Mahavir Medical Centre. 

23



4 
 

WLCCG – Charnwood Beacon 33,955 Population     Accountable Clinical Director: Dr R Dempsey (Charnwood Medical) 

 
GP Practices 
C82041: Charnwood Medical Group 
C82103: Dishley Grange Medical Practice 
C82656: Field Street Surgery 
C82064: Forest House Surgery 
 
 

24



5 
 

WLCCG – Charnwood Carillon 55,445 Population      Accountable Clinical Director: Dr L Borrill (Bridge Street) 

 
GP Practices  
C82026: Bridge Street Medical Practice 
C82035: Park View Surgery 
C82011: Pinfold Medical Practice 
C82070: Woodbrook Medical Centre 
C82111: Loughborough University Medical Centre.  

25



6 
 

WLCCG – Hinckley & Bosworth (Fosseway) 42,742 Population    Accountable Clinical Director(s): Dr V Bolarum (Burbage) & Dr A Khalid (Orchard) 

 
 
GP Practices  
C82093: Orchard Medical Practice 
C82027: The Old School Surgery 
C82054: Burbage Surgery 
C82061: Barwell & Hollycroft Medical Practices 
 

26



7 
 

WLCCG – Hinckley & Bosworth (Hinckley Central) 38,732 Population   Accountable Clinical Director: Dr R Dockrell (Castle Mead) 
 

 
GP Practices  
C82043: Station View Health Centre 
C82082: Centre Surgery 
C82047: Maples Family Medical Practice 
C82075: Castle Mead Medical Centre 
 
 

27



8 
 

WLCCG – North West Leicestershire (Neighbourhood 1) 42,823 Population    Accountable Clinical Director: Dr K Moore (Measham) 

 

GP Practices  
C82012: Ibstock & Barlestone Surgeries 
 C82014: Castle Medical Group 
C82017: Measham Medical Unit 
C82663: The Surgery Ashby. 

28



9 
 

WLCCG – North West Leicestershire (Neighbourhood 2) 37,319 Population   Accountable Clinical Director: Dr K Moore (Measham) 

 

GP Practices 
C82028: Markfield Medical Centre 
C82050: Long Lane Surgery 
C82072: Broom Leys Surgery 
C82096: Hugglescote Surgery. 
 

29



10 
 

WLCCG – Hinckley & Bosworth (Bosworth) 37,491 Population     Accountable Clinical Director: Dr J Ogle (Ratby) 

 

GP Practices  
C82051: Newbold Verdon Medical Practice 
C82650: Desford Medical Centre 
C82628: Groby Surgery 
C82121: Heath Lane Surger 
 C82634 Ratby Surgery 
 

30



 

ELRCCG – Cross Counties PCN 42,271 Population       Accountable Clinical Director: Dr Anuj Chahal 

 

Location on Map 

1  C82022 Billesdon Surgery 
2  C82001 Kibworth Health Centre 
3  C82067 The Croft Medical Centre 
4  C82036 Two Shires Medical Practice 
 

31



 

 

ELRCCG – Market Harborough & Bosworth PCN 28,445 Population    Accountable Clinical Director: Dr Hamant Mistry  

 

Location on Map Code Name 

1 C82109 Husbands Bosworth Medical Centre 

2 C82009 Market Harborough Medical Centre 

32



 

ELRCCG – North Blaby PCN 60,264 Population       Accountable Clinical Director: Dr Simon Vincent 

 

Location on map Code Name 

1 C82631 Enderby Medical Centre 

2 C82066 Forest House Medical Centre 

3 C82039 Kingsway Surgery 

4 C82056 The Glenfield Surgery 

33



 

ELRCCG – Oadby and Wigston PCN 49,059 Population      Accountable Clinical Director: Dr Richard Palin 

 

Location on Map  Code Name 

1 C82013 Bushloe Surgery 

2 C82048 Rosemead Drive Surgery 

3 C82112 Severn Surgery 

4 C82079 South Wigston Health Centre 

5 C82021 The Central Surgery 

6 C82071 Wigston Central Surgery 

 

34



 

ELRCCG – Rutland Healthcare PCN 38569 Population    Accountable Clinical Director: Dr Hilary Fox  

 

Location on Map Code Name 

1 C82044 Empingham Medical Centre 

2 C82649 Market Overton & Somerby Surgeries 

3 C82010 Oakham Medical Practice 

4 C82077 The Uppingham Surgery 

 

35



 

ELRCCG – Syston, Vale and Melton (SVM) PCN 69,519 Population     Accountable Clinical Director: Dr Fahreen Dhanji  

 

Location On Map Code Name 
1 C82038 Latham House Medical Practice 

2 C82016 Long Clawson Medical Practice 

3 C83653 Stackyard and Woolsthorpe Surgery 

4 C82042 The County Practice 

5 C82078 The Jubilee Medical Practice 

 

36



 

ELRCCG – South Blaby & Lutterworth PCN 47,188 Population     Accountable Clinical Director: Dr Rachel Omand 

 

Location on Map   
1 C82002 Countesthorpe Health Centre 

2 C82098 Hazelmere Medical Centre 

3 C82068 Northfield Medical Centre 

4 C82611 The Masharani Practice 

5 C82025 The Wycliffe Medical Practice 

 

37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix -LLR’s PCN Structure – July 2019 

 

CCG Proposed PCN Member Practices  Population 

(List Size) 

ACD 

ELR Syston, Vale & 

Melton  

Latham House, County, Jubilee, Stackyard(*), Long Clawson  69 519 Dr Fahreen Dhanji  

ELR Oadby & Wigston Wigston Central, South Wigston, Bushloe, Oadby Central, 

Severn, Rosemead  

49 059 Dr Richard Palin 

ELR North Blaby  Glenfield, Kingsway, Enderby, Forest House, The Limes 60 264 Dr Simon Vincent 

ELR South Blaby & 

Lutterworth  

Northfield, Wycliffe, Masharani, Countesthorpe, Hazelmere 47 248 Dr Rachel Omand 

ELR Harborough & 

Bosworth 

Market Harborough, Husbands Bosworth  28 445 Dr Hamant Mistry 

ELR Cross Counties   South Leicestershire, Croft & Billesdon  

 

42 271 Dr Anuj Chahal 

ELR Rutland Health  Uppingham, Oakham, Empingham, Market Overton  39,920 Dr Hilary Fox  

WL Bosworth Newbold, Desford, Ratby, Groby, Heath Lane 37,491 Dr James Ogle 

WL Hinckley Central Station View, Centre, Maples, Castle Mead 38,732 Dr R Dockrell 

WL Fosseway Orchard, Old School, Burbage, Barwell & Holly Croft 42,742 Dr V Bolarum & 

Dr A Khalid 

WL North West 

Leicestershire 

Ibstock & Barlestone Surgeries, Castle Medical Group, 

Measham Medical Unit, The Surgery – Ashby 

42,823 

Dr Kirk Moore 

Markfield Medical Centre, Long Lane Surgery, Broom Leys 

Surgery, Hugglescote Surgery 

37,319 

Castle Donnington, Whitwick Road Surgery, Dr Patel & Dr Tailor 

(Whitwick Health Centre), Manor House Surgery, Dr Virmani (& 

Dr Bedi) (Whitwick Health Centre) 

27,724 

WL Watermead Thurmaston, Greengate, Birstall, Silverdale, Mahavir  31,816 Dr Anu Rao 

WL Soar Valley Quorn, Cottage, Banks, Highgate, Charnwood Surgery, Alpine, 

Barrow, Anstey 

49,863 Dr Nick Simpson 

WL CH3 – Carillon Bridge Street, Park View, Pinfold, Woodbrook, University 55,445 Dr Leslie Borrill 

WL CH4 – Beacon  Charnwood, Dishley, Field Street, Forest House 33,955 Dr Rebecca 

Dempsey 

City  Belgrave & 

Spinney  

East Park MC, The Charnwood Practice, Canon St, Spinney Hill 

MC, Broadhurst Surgery  

45,774 Dr Prakash 
Pancholi  

City  The Leicester 

Foxes 

Dr Kapur St Peter’s, Dr Kapur Narborough Rd, Dr Kapur 
Brandon ST, Surgery at Aylestone, Evington MC, Al-Waqas, Dr 
D’Souza St Peter’s, Dr D’Souza, Queens Rd 

33.498 Dr Vivek Sharma  

City  Leicester Central Community HC, Highfields Surgery, Highfields MC, Shefa MP, 
Sayeed MC, Heron Practice, Bowling Green St, Ar-Razi 

51,058 Dr Rajiv Wadhwa  

City  Salutem  Johnson MP, Downing Drive, Humberstone MP, St Elizabeth’s  35,455 Dr Aileen Tincello  

City  Aegis Healthcare Willowbrook, The Willows, Clarendon Park MC, East Leicester 
MP, Heatherbrook Surgery, Pasley Road HC (Dr Khong) 

41,104 Dr Mo Roshan 

City  Millennium  Manor Park MP, Beaumont Lodge MP, Briton St Surgery, 
Westcotes Surgeries, Westcotes MC, Brandon St Surgery, 
Aylestone HC 

50,971 Dr Durairaj 
Jawahar 

City  City Care Alliance  Merridale MC, The Parks, Fosse Family Practice, Beaumont 
Leys HC, Asquith Surgery, Spirit Rushy Mead 

38,589 Dr Umesh Roy  

City  Leicester City & 

University  

Dr Montfort University, Victoria Park HC 45,234 Dr Aruna Garcea  

City  Leicester City 

South  

Saffron health, The Hedges MC, Pasley Road, Assist, Inclusion 
Healthcare, Walnut St MC 

35,417 Dr Amit Rastogi  

 
 

 

 

39



This page is intentionally left blank



County Health and Wellbeing 

Board July 2019 

Integrated Community Workstream 
and Community Services Redesign 

41
A

genda Item
 6



Contents: 

 

• Integrated Community Programme 

• Why redesign Community Health Services ? 

• Project scope and approach 

• Engagement 

• What will future community services look like? 

• What will this mean for patients and staff? 

• Timeframe for implementation in 2019/2020 

• Next steps towards integrated Community Health Services within an 

Integrated Care System 

 

 

 

 

 

 

42



Integrated Community Programme 
Improving integrated health and care services across Leicester, 

Leicestershire and Rutland 

 

Long Term 
Conditions 

Integrated 
Teams 

Carers Care Homes 

End of Life 

Home First 

Community 
Services 
Redesign   

43



The Integrated Community programme reflects working at system, 
place and neighbourhood population levels: 

ICS whole system working 
Design of a consistent 
framework for service 
offering across LLR e.g. 

Community Services  
Redesign, End of Life, Carers 

Strategy 

Overarching strategy and 
strategic priorities.  

Integrated Community 
Programme 

Outcomes 
framework and 

population health 
management 

capability for all 
population levels 
– feeds ICS, place, 

PCNs 

Commissioning of 
services  that are 
delivered across 

LLR 

 Place working 
Partnership of providers, 

health and care, district / local 
level partnership working 

incorporating wider 
determinants of health to 
improve health outcomes Integrated Delivery 

Group 

Overseeing delivery 
of integrated 

model in 
Leicestershire 

Service offering 
delivered at place 
level e.g. Home 

First, First Contact 
Plus 

PCN neighbourhood working 
Integrated care provision in 

local teams,  populations 
based on GP lists 

Local relationships across 
NHS, range of providers, 
voluntary sector, building 

community assets 

MDT working 

Care co-ordination  

Identifying and meeting 
specific population needs 

Access to local prevention 
offer 

44



Why are we reviewing community health services? 

• Opportunities to increase number of people who can be cared 
for to remain in the place they call home 

• Increase integration between community services, primary care  
and  social care so that people get more joined up care  

• Current community nursing service not able to deliver sufficient 
support to patients at home, only has capacity for routine care  

• Community services structured around integrated teams with 
GP practices and social care, better continuity of care and a 
more preventative approach 

• Joined up health and care response in a crisis 

• Single assessments, co-ordinated care packages 

 

45



What we’ve done so far: 

 Looked at best practice across the country  

 Audited current pathways 

 Held co-design workshops with key stakeholders  

 A Clinical Reference Group looked at different options 

 Engaged on a high level model  

 Developed a detailed service specification 

 Design of operational service model and costings 

 CCG approval to implement first year of changes 

 

46



Engagement work 

• Extensive work to understand current experiences of community health 

services (focussed interviews, online survey, analysis of existing 

feedback) 

• Report to Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Jan) and 

briefings to lead members  

• Six public events in Feb and March 

• Summarised progress to date, including: 

 analysis of existing patient, carer and staff experiences 

 explained vision for new model, focussing on home based care 

 set out proposed 2019/2020 changes and sought feedback 

 

 

 

 

47



Summary of feedback from engagement  

• People want to stay in their own homes, but confidence in support from 
services in the community to manage this well is sometimes lacking 

• Recognition that social care and primary care are fundamental to delivering 
improved community based care  

• Carers often articulate negative experiences of the support they and their 
loved one get 

• Some concerns over rurality and a desire to see more services delivered in 
local settings for local populations 

• A view that community hospital beds are a ‘safe’ option for sicker people 

• Scepticism that we can tackle long standing issues and make a positive 
change 

• LPT staff value increased continuity of care, some concern over loss of 
specialist team structure 

48



Community Services Redesign model 
49



What does this mean? 

Patients and carers 

• More continuity of care  

• Faster access to therapy for those with urgent needs/reablement potential 

• Faster, smoother, better planned discharge home 

• Joined up health and social care offer in crisis 

• 2 hour crisis response  

Staff 

• Fewer handoffs between teams 

• Single assessments, joint decision making in Home First 

• Clear alignment with Primary care and social care teams in MDTs 

• More medical support to Home First teams 

50



Changes to local services in this year 

We will redesign the current service whilst still providing the same (or 
better) level of care to patients in their home by: 

 

• Reorganising current nursing and therapy teams  

• Creating community nursing and therapy teams working at 
neighbourhood level.  This will improve continuity of care and create 
better team working with GP practices 

• Some staff will work in integrated ‘Home First’ services alongside social 
care crisis response and reablement workers 

• Creating local decision units in each social care area, as single points of 
access for discharge decision making and crisis response 

• Introducing 7 day therapy assessment and rapid response 

• Enhanced medical support for patients at home 

 

51



What does this mean for County services? 

• Home First service incorporating social care crisis response and 

reablement teams working alongside LPT staff 

• Locality Decision Unit being piloted – co-located integrated team 

with single assessment and shared delivery of packages of care 

• Community nursing teams will be aligned to new Primary Care 

Network structure – 18 teams in Leicestershire 

• Consistent care co-ordination offer  

• Primary Care Networks will provide more responsive medical 

support to Home First teams and their patients 

 

 

52



End of Life 

• Task force approach across the system 

• Bringing together specialist palliative care services provided by 

Leicestershire Partnership Trust and LOROS 

• Single point of access into specialist triage and assessment 

• Better co-ordination of care, whether that be from district nurses, 

specialist palliative care or care packages 

• Work includes a focus on advanced care planning (RESPECT), 

better discharge processes, and communication with patients/carers 

and across health and care teams 

 

 

53



Next steps 

• Develop and test Locality Decision Unit model in County (July) 

• Aim to complete LPT staff transfer to new teams by December 

• Develop integrated team working with Primary Care networks  

• Review Health and Social Care protocol  

• Develop workforce plan for shared reablement workers 

• Consider potential for more formal integration and joint 

commissioning   

• Engage on options for community bed model 

 

54



 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 11th JULY 2019 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
 

JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT – AIR QUALITY AND HEALTH 
 
Purpose of the report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of the recommendations that have 

arisen from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) Air Quality and Health 
chapter. 

  
Link to the local Health and Care System 
 
2. The local authority and clinical commissioning groups (CCGs) have equal and joint 

statutory responsibility to prepare a JSNA for Leicestershire, through the Health and 
Wellbeing Board. The Health and Social Care Act 2012 amended the Local 
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 to introduce duties and 
powers for Health and Wellbeing Boards in relation to JSNAs. 

 
3. JSNAs are a continuous process and are an integral part of CCG and local authority 

commissioning cycles. Health and wellbeing boards need to decide for themselves 
when to update or refresh JSNAs or undertake a fresh process to ensure that they 
are able to inform local commissioning plans over time.  

 
4. Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland’s Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) 

sets out a vision for the future of health and care services. It focuses on ensuring that 
consistently quality services are delivered which are easier for local people to 
access. Where possible, it is important that the JSNA is used as the evidence base 
for the STP. 
 

5. The purpose of the JSNA is to improve the health and wellbeing of the local 
community and reduce inequalities for all ages. It should be viewed as a continuous 
process of strategic assessment and planning with the aim to develop local evidence-
based priorities for commissioning which will improve the public’s health and reduce 
inequalities. 
 

6. The JSNA will be used to help to determine what actions the local authority, the local 
NHS and other partners need to take to meet health and social care needs, and to 
address the wider determinants that impact on health and wellbeing. 
 

7. The local authority, CCGs and NHS England’s plans for commissioning services will 
be expected to be informed by the JSNA. Where plans are not in line with the JSNA, 
the local authority, CCGs and NHS England must be able to explain why. 
 

8. The JSNA is a statutory document that is used by many organisations to evidence 
changes to the commissioning of local services. As such, if any organisation receives 
a legal challenge to the services they commission based on the JSNA, the local 
authority could also be part of that legal challenge.  It is essential that the process 

55 Agenda Item 7



 

that is followed meets the legislation that is set out and that the JSNA is a robust 
document. 

 
Recommendation 
 
9. It is recommended that the Health and Wellbeing Board notes the recommendations 

arising from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) Air Quality and Health 
Chapter. 

 
Policy Framework and Previous Decisions 
 
10. The last full JSNA for Leicestershire was produced in 2015 and can be accessed at:  

http://www.lsr-online.org/leicestershire-2015-jsna.html.   
 
11. The Health and Wellbeing Board received a paper in January 2018 which proposed 

that the JSNA would be published in subject-specific chapters throughout a three-
year time period on an iterative basis, in line with CCG and local authority 
commissioning cycles.  This approach was supported with the JSNA outputs agreed 
as: 

 

 Subject-specific chapters of an assessment of current and future health and social  

 care needs.  

 Infographic summary of each chapter 

 A data dashboard that is updated on a quarterly basis to allow users to self-serve 

high level data requests  

 

12. The Health and Wellbeing Board considered the adult mental health chapter in some 

detail at its Development Day in Autumn 2018.  This resulted in the development of 

an Action Plan which is being considered as a separate item on this agenda. 

Background 
 
13. The JSNA Air Quality and Health chapter was published online in June 2019 

following discussion at the JSNA Reference Group. A link to the full chapter can be 
found under Background papers section towards the bottom of this report.  A 
summary of the recommendations arising from the chapter is provided below. 
 

Summary of Recommendations JSNA Air Quality and Health 
 

14. By its nature, air quality cannot be controlled by geographical boundaries or by a 

single individual alone.  Instead collective, systematic efforts are required to reduce 

air pollution and its harmful effects on health.  The key recommendation from the 

comprehensive JSNA chapter is that the Leicestershire Air Quality and Health 

Partnership Steering Group should agree a plan to deliver joint actions to tackle poor 

air quality and related health issues. All key partners and stakeholders should commit 

to deliver this plan over the next three years.  

 

15. Six objectives, and associated recommendations, are set out below and these could 

form the basis of the partnership action plan. 

56

http://www.lsr-online.org/leicestershire-2015-jsna.html


 

 

Objective 1: Clear leadership, vision and strategic direction  

- Leicestershire County Council (LCC), district councils, and CCGs should 

commit, through working together in annual action plans, to making 

Leicestershire a healthy place to live, work and travel by dedicating resources 

(as appropriate) to reduce harmful emissions and mitigate against the negative 

impacts to public health and the environment of poor air quality.  

- LCC should lead by example by delivering against the Environmental Strategy 

and aim to achieve carbon neutrality by 2030.  

- LCC, district councils, and CCGs should map and engage with the various fora 

that exist to understand and engage meaningfully with local businesses, 

voluntary sector agencies or Leicestershire residents on environmental/ air 

quality and health issues.   

Objective 2: Collaborative partnership working  

- The partnership should support local authorities to continue to work together and 

seek public health advice when tackling air quality and health issues through 

promotion of the work of the LLR Air Quality forum and East Midlands Air Quality 

network.   

- Public health specialists, as members of the LLR Air Quality Forum, should 

support consideration of wider issues related to air quality and, as appropriate, 

invite key partners (e.g. health and social care colleagues).  

- The partnership steering group should review and refresh the terms of reference 

based on the agreed priorities and, as appropriate, widen the membership, 

sharing information with the Leicestershire Environmental Health management 

group to ensure alignment with other work in this area. 

- LCC Public Health Department should provide further resource to support whole 

School Approaches to adopt Air Quality and Active Travel as part of the Healthy 

Schools programme.  

Objective 3: Consideration of air quality and health in planning and development  

- LCC Public Health Department should consider formalising its commitment, 

through dedicated resource, to routinely deliver specialist support for strategic 

spatial planning, local area plan development (including capability building) and 

work on major developments to reduce sources and public exposure to air 

pollution.  

- LCC and district councils should commit to integration of air quality into planning 

policy as well as policies that influence strategic and local development plans. A 

health in all policies approach could be adopted to achieve this.   

57



 

- LCC Public Health Department should support and develop members and local 

planners, through training and mentoring, to consider the health impacts of 

planning proposals and urban re-development.  Dissemination of opportunities 

will include utilising the distribution list of the LLR Air Quality forum.  

Objective 4: Aligning air quality and health with environment and transport 
decisions  

- Planning and Highways Authorities should seek to implement a hierarchy of 

sustainable travel which prioritises walking and cycling above other forms of 

transport. This includes prioritising investment in walking and cycling 

infrastructure, especially where this would encourage and facilitate active travel 

to schools and workplaces in areas of high urban density. 

- LCC Environment and Transport Department, working in collaboration with 

district councils, should consider providing further resource to expand the work 

being delivered to support business, schools and developers to make and 

deliver comprehensive travel plans. This methodology should be used to deliver 

travel mode shift for business, schools as well as new places in Leicestershire. 

Objective 5: General communication with the public and organisations about air 
quality and health  

- LCC, district councils, and CCGs should provide air quality and health 

information to residents, local businesses, health organisations, local early 

year’s settings, schools colleges and universities; explaining how people and 

organisations can minimise emissions of pollutants and exposure to poor air 

quality.  

- LCC, district councils, and CCGs should deliver key messages on air quality and 

health, and links to Data Air Quality Index (DAQI), through updating existing 

online portals as well as through leaflets, face to face contact and other formats 

that meet their needs. Partners should align and join up public health messages 

around being active with those about reducing emissions and exposure to air 

quality through active and sustainable travel choices.  

- LCC, district councils, and CCGs should train and mentor front line staff to 

deliver messages around air quality and health as part of their daily role.   

Objective 6: Targeted communication and campaigns with priority groups and key 
organisations about air quality and health   
 

- LCC Communications Department, working in collaboration with local 

communication networks, should consider leading on a programme of work to 

design, deliver and evaluate campaigns to reduce emissions of air pollutants. 

This may include promoting anti-idling, reducing multi fuel stove use and/ or 

making active and sustainable travel choices. 

 

58



 

- LCC Communications Department, working in collaboration with local 

communication networks, should consider leading on a programme of work to 

design, deliver and evaluate campaigns to reduce individuals’ and communities’ 

exposure to air pollutants. These may be focused in Air Quality Management 

Areas, urban centres or directed at priority groups (for example, children, 

individuals at risk of ill health due to multi-morbidity or key workforce groups). 

Further work is required to investigate need as well as unintended 

consequences of adopting an air quality alerting system aimed at those who are 

particularly susceptible to negative health effects from poor air quality.  

 
Conclusion 
 
16. This JSNA chapter details a comprehensive look at the air quality and related health 

issues pertinent to Leicestershire and its constituent district councils.  A cross 
organisational steering group is in the process of producing the follow-on Air Quality 
and Health Partnership Action Plan that is expected to deliver against these 
recommendations. 

 
Background papers 
 
JSNA Air Quality and Health Chapter can be accessed via the following link: 
http://www.lsr-online.org/leicestershire-2018-2021-jsna.html 
 
Officer to Contact 
 
Julia Knight  
Senior Public Health Registrar 
Telephone: 0116 3055071 
Email: Julia.Knight@leics.gov.uk 
 
Caroline Boucher 
Head of Business Intelligence 
Telephone: 0116 3057262 
Email: Caroline.boucher@leics.gov.uk 
  
Kajal Lad 
Public Health Business Partner 
Telephone: 0116 3054266 
Email: Kajal.lad@leics.gov.uk 
 
Relevant Impact Assessments 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
17. The JSNA is subject to an EHRIA.  This is being conducted on an ongoing basis in 

consultation with the council’s policy officers.  A representative from the 
Leicestershire Equality Challenge Group (LECG) sits on the JSNA Reference Group 
and members of the LECG participate in the Task and Finish Groups which oversee 
the development of each chapter.  

  
Environmental Implications 

59

http://www.lsr-online.org/leicestershire-2018-2021-jsna.html
mailto:Julia.Knight@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.boucher@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Kajal.lad@leics.gov.uk


 

 
18. The JSNA chapter provides evidence about air quality and health related issues and 

makes recommendations to improve current co-ordination of activities with a view to 
improving air quality and mitigating the impacts on health.  The recommendations are 
summarised in this paper. 
 

Partnership Working and associated issues 
 
19. The key recommendation from the comprehensive JSNA chapter is that the 

Leicestershire Air Quality and Health Partnership Steering Group should agree a plan 
to deliver joint actions to tackle poor air quality and related health issues. All key 
partners and stakeholders should commit to deliver this plan over the next three 
years. 

60



 
 

 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 11 JULY 2019 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES, 

LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP BOARD UPDATE 
 
Purpose of the report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to provide the Health and Wellbeing Board with an 

overview of the work undertaken by the Strategic Partnership Board, including the 
development of People Zones. 
 

Link to the local Health and Care System 
 
 

2. The Strategic Partnership Board (SPB) sets out and leads the strategic delivery of 
community safety and criminal justice priorities across Leicester, Leicestershire and 
Rutland and leads a shared partnership vision for Leicester, Leicestershire and 
Rutland (LLR) to address human behaviours that cause harm to people and 
communities. The work of the Strategic Partnership Board links to the delivery of the 
joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

  
 

Recommendation 
 
3. It is recommended that the Health and Wellbeing Board notes the content of the 

report. 
 
Background 
 

 
4. The SPB is chaired by the Police and Crime Commissioner and is made up of Chief 

Officers from Leicestershire County Council, Leicester City Council, Rutland County 
Council, District Councils, Derbyshire, Rutland, Nottingham and Leicestershire 
Community Rehabilitation Company, National Probation Service (Leicestershire), 
Clinical Commissioning Group representative, Leicestershire Partnership Trust, 
University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust, Leicestershire Fire and Rescue Service,  
East Midlands Ambulance Service, Leicestershire Police, Crown Prosecution 
Service, HM Courts and Leicester Prison. 

 
5. The Board is supported by an Executive and a number of sub groups leading on the 

following strands of work:- 
 

i. People and Place 
ii. Offender Management 
iii. Victims and Vulnerability 
iv. Serious and Organised Crime 

 

a 
61 Agenda Item 8



 

People and Place 
 

6. The People and Place Board was established in February 2019 with the following 

strategic aims:- 

 
 

a. To implement and evaluate the effectiveness of the People Zones’ initiative. 
 

b. To map existing partnership structures relevant to the objectives of the P&P 
Board. 
 

c. To map and review existing examples of collaborative locality based working 
across LLR 
 

d. To develop proposals for enhancing integrated working practices arising from the 
above review.  
 

e. To review methodologies for integrated locality based planning and problem 
solving and develop proposals for wider implementation. 
 

f. To review methodologies for shared communication and engagement activity and 
develop proposals for wider implementation.  
 

g. To develop methodologies for analysing patterns of behaviour and demand for 
services at the local level. 
 

h. To develop methodologies for sharing intelligence across agencies and members 
of the community.  

i. To identify examples of collaborative horizon scanning across agencies and test 
potential for wider use. 
 

7. To date the work has focussed on the development of People Zones in three areas 

across LLR: Loughborough; Coalville and New Parks in Leicester. People Zones are 

geographically defined areas wherein public services work collaboratively to address the 

key social problems for that particular area. They are focussed on “people” issues with 

the intention of addressing the issues that are the highest priority for the local community 

and the organisations that support them. These are now established and at varying 

stages of development. The People Zone in the Bell Foundry estate in Loughborough is 

probably the most advanced and has most of the key provisions in place, including the 

capability to provide community leadership, access community assets, integrate the work 

of local agencies and build a shared approach to people management/issue resolution. 

 

8.  A key element of making a People Zone work is the leadership provided by local 

agencies and Charnwood Borough Council has been pivotal in driving forward this 

initiative.  

 

9. The People and Place Board has also commissioned the development of an operating 

model design, which is nearing completion and will enable the replication of People 

Zones  across LLR. It describes the methodology for analysing the problem data, 

62



 

building the team, engaging with the community and other features. This model will be 

made available to partners when complete.  

 

10. The Board has also commissioned the development of a model for evaluating People 

Zones, which is also nearing completion. The model has been developed by 

Loughborough University and focusses on the impact of the Zone on the core problem, 

as well as impact on a range of measures that are indicative of general social resilience. 

It also captures measures of change in community perceptions. Once again, this model 

will be made available to all partners when it is complete. At present the designers are 

testing the model by applying it to the Bell Foundry estate data.  

 

11. The alignment with Health is an ongoing piece of work reflecting the implementation of 

Primary Care Networks, which break down the area of LLR into a series of geographies 

that have a 30,000 to 50,000 population led by a clinical director. This initiative also 

encompasses a drive to enhance the extent to which health services draw on community 

based assets and collaborate with communities in developing their services. Clearly this 

methodology aligns well with the objectives of the People and Place Board and further 

work will be done to explore synergies and simplify partnership arrangements.  

 
12. People Zones have benefited from working alongside the Local Area Co-ordinator 

initiative in the county run by Public Health Leicestershire.  

Offender Management 
 

13. The Strategic Offender Management and MAPPA Board (SOMMB) combined the 

MAPPA and Reducing Reoffending Boards in September 2018 to provide governance to 

the management of offenders across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland. 

 

14. The SOMMB board set key priorities for the year and these are: 

 

 To consider the role of MAPPA within reducing serious organised crime:  

 To strengthen the links between troubled families and offender management. 

 To develop an effective multi-agency process for ensuring shared learning and   
continual improvement across the partnerships. 

 To develop a multi-agency performance report. 

 To develop a multi-agency quality assurance regime across offender management 
to embed effective joint risk assessment processes including timely pre-sentence 
assessments.  

 To embed the routine sharing of intelligence against recognised offenders subject to 
multi-agency intervention  

 To develop an effective and tailored service towards those offenders identified as a 
priority including CSE perpetrators, SOC nominals, MAPPA Offenders , Repeat 
Domestic Abuse offenders and priority  Foreign National Offenders and women 
offenders. 
 

15. The Integrated Offender Management Team, a multiagency team, focus on problem 

solving and reducing the harm and demand caused by these offenders, using the tactics 

each partner can utilise to best effect. The four key areas they focus on are; 

63



 

 

 Investigate  - understanding why and how they may cause offences 

 Rehabilitate - offer diversion and education to prevent offending 

 Restrict   - provide controls and enforce if breached 

 Protect   - safeguard victims, public and associates of the offender 
 

16. The Team are dealing with 347 offenders who present high risk of causing serious harm 

or reoffending with 56% relating to serious crime, domestic abuse, firearms or serious 

violence. 

 

17. A proposed format for operational and oversight of substance misuse services was 

provided which seeks to increase the information provided to local authorities from the 

available data and allow for local problem solving within community safety partnerships 

 
18. A review of the drugs intervention programme had also taken place with a streamlined 

and more intervention based approach being adopted that seeks to get people into 

treatment rather than focusing on the number of people screened. 

 
19. EnGage is a CRC led, Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) funded 

scheme targeting 18-24 year olds following a community resolution or conditional caution 

for an offence. Of the 395 referral and interventions 375 have not committed any further 

offences.  The lead officer for EnGage will be exploring how this service has developed 

and its potential for use across developing threat areas such as serious and organised 

crime, criminal exploitation and Modern Slavery. 

 

Victims and Vulnerability 

 

20. The Vulnerability Executive was created to provide Strategic Leadership for multi-agency 

responses to Vulnerability across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland. It brought 

together the already established Domestic Abuse Executive and the CSE Executive. The 

purpose of the Executive is; 

 To agree an LLR strategy and action plan for child & adult vulnerability which 

will include the following priority areas CAIU, CSE, Missing, Domestic and 

Sexual Abuse, Criminal Exploitation and Modern Slavery Human Trafficking 

reflecting both the outcomes of LLR JSNAs and improvements identified 

through the scrutiny and challenge of the LSCB/LSABs. 

 To set strategic areas of priority across the vulnerability spectrum for focus 

and assurance by partners and local boards.  

 To provide drive and focus to operational delivery and response to child & 

adult vulnerability priorities specifically in promoting multi- agency 

partnership working. 

 To oversee the emerging threat profile and ensure appropriate responses to 

strategic threat and risk assessment. 

 To ensure that there is a performance management regime across agreed 

priority areas to test impact and provide assurance of improvement to the 

LSCB/LSABs. 

64



 

 Take steps to ensure public trust is maintained in collective responses. 

 

21. The Executive has met twice with the last meeting being held on the 1st February 

2019. It agreed the following areas of priority; 

 Child Criminal Exploitation 

 Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence – LLR Strategy and Vision 

 Modern Day Slavery and Human Trafficking  

 Repeat missing persons 

 
22. The Executive is due to meet on the 20th May 2019 where it will consider the revised 

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Strategy and Vision for Domestic Abuse and 

Sexual Violence and the proposed Strategy, Vision and delivery timeline for 

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland’s aligned responses to Child Criminal 

Exploitation.  

 
23. The Child Vulnerability Ops group which reports to the Executive has met twice and 

agreed the proposed Strategy, Vision and delivery timeline for Leicester, 

Leicestershire and Rutland’s aligned responses to Child Criminal Exploitation. The 

OPCC funded post of Child Criminal Exploitation Strategic Lead for the Partnership 

has been appointed and will be attending the next Executive. This role will assist in 

the design and implementation of all partners’ operational responses to this 

exploitation and ensure there is alignment.  

 
24. The Domestic, Sexual Violence and Abuse Ops group which reports to the Executive 

has also met twice. It has agreed a revised Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland 

Strategy, Vision and Governance structure for Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 

and will ask the Executive for agreement to allow this new strategy and delivery 

structure to be implemented.  

 
Serious and Organised Crime 

 
25. The Strategic Partnership Board Executive agreed in November 2018 a clear 

partnership strategy to reduce the harm caused by Serious and Organised Crime 

across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland. 

 
26. The strategic aim is to work effectively together to reduce the harm caused by 

serious and organised crime across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland by: 

 

 Having a shared understanding of the threats informed by shared information and 

risk assessment 

 

 Jointly preventing people becoming involved and ensuring effective diversion and 

interventions are in place 

 

 Be able to identify and deal with the vulnerability and harm caused by serious and 

organised crime 

65



 

 

 Evidencing operational activity to disrupt and deter those involved using the 

partnerships range of interventions available 

 
 

27. Operation Lionheart: On 9 April 2019 Operation Lionheart was initiated by Leicestershire 

Police as the intensive enforcement stage of a significant police investigation into County 

Lines drugs supply and serious organised crime across Leicester, Leicestershire and 

Rutland.  The operation resulted in 124 executed warrants and 87 people arrested,  82 of 

which were charged . 15 vulnerable adults were identified and 15 vulnerable children 

were all found to be engaged in some form of criminal activity. 

28. The main areas impacted were Charnwood and Leicester City where exceptional support 

from safeguarding teams, housing, repairs, Turning Point and community safety have 

allowed for further disruption and interventions to be provided. 

 
29. The operation continues as those charged start to appear in court. The disruption to a 

number of known organised crime groups has been significant. 

 
Officer to Contact 
 
Jane Moore, 
Director of Children and Family Services 
Leicestershire County Council 
0116 3052649 

 

Relevant Impact Assessments 
 
 
Equality and Human Rights  
 
Implications: the work outlined above impacts significantly on vulnerable groups of people 
across Leicestershire. Where new services or initiatives are developed full impact 
assessments are undertaken. 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

66



 

 

 

 
 

 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: THURSDAY 11TH JULY 2019 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF ADULTS AND COMMUNITIES 

PROGRESS OF THE HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 

SECTOR GROWTH PLAN 2017-2020 

 

Purpose of the report 

 
1. The purpose of this report is to present progress with the Leicester, Leicestershire 

and Rutland Health and Social Care Sector Growth Plan published in 2017. 

Link to the local Health and Care System 

 
2. The LLR Health and Social Care Sector Growth Plan operates alongside, and adds 

value to, other significant programmes of reform in the sector. Linkages with the local 
Health and Care System are as follows: 

 

Plan 
 

Relationship 

Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan 
and Better Care 
Together 
 

Of relevance to a number of activities, but particularly 
workforce and organisational development. The health 
and social care system Local Workforce Action Board 
(LWAB) has links to the sector growth plan steering group, 
which endeavours to add value to and avoid duplication 
with the work of LWAB 
 

Leicestershire County 
Council’s Strategic 
Plan 2018-2022 
 

The sector growth plan contributes to the ‘Strong 
Economy’ and ‘Keeping People Safe’ strategic outcomes 

Adult Social Care 
Strategy and 
Workforce Strategy 
2016-2020 

The plan supports the approach to ensure that people who 
need support receive the right support from the right 
partner in the right time and place, and to prevent, reduce, 
delay, and then meet need 
 

Better Care Fund Some of the initiatives with the delivery plan are supported 
with Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF) budget 
 

 

 

67 Agenda Item 9



 

 
 
 
 
 

Recommendations 

 
3. It is recommended that 

 
a) The progress towards the Health and Social Care Sector Growth Plan be noted 

 
b) The Board considers a further update on the progress of the Health and Social 

Care Sector Growth Plan in 12 months’ time. 

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions 

 
4. The sector growth plan was presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board on 20th 

July 2017, and an update was presented in July 2018.  It was agreed that a further 
update on progress would be brought to the Board in July 2019. 

Background 

 
Sector Growth Plan Context 

 
5. In 2016, Leicestershire County Council, Leicester City Council and Rutland County 

Council commissioned the development of a three-year sector growth plan for health 
and social care in Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR), supplementing the 
earlier activity led by Leicester and Leicestershire Enterprise Partnership (LLEP) that 
had focussed on other key sectors. This was in recognition not only of the scale of 
the health and social care sector and its importance to a vibrant LLR economy, but 
also of the opportunity it presented for key partners to work together on well-
recognised challenges.  

 
6. The resulting growth plan was informed by a quantitative assessment of the sector 

and by primary research with more than 150 frontline workers, managers and 
stakeholders from across LLR. It considered the scale and composition of the health 
and social care sector, identified challenges and opportunities, and proposed the 
development of actions to ensure that the sector in LLR can flourish and meet the 
needs of the local population in the future, structured under four key themes: 
 

a. Improving the image of the sector 
b. Supporting the sector with resilience and growth 
c. Developing and retaining the current workforce 
d. Attracting a high-quality workforce 

 
Strategic Developments 
 

7. Since the publication of the plan in 2017, there have been a number of positive 
strategic developments, some of which are summarised below.  The health and 
social care sector has become more embedded in the development of new 
developing strategies clearly showing how important and influential this sector is to 
the local economy. 

68



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
8. Government launched its UK Industrial Strategy in November 2017 and announced 

its intention to work in partnership with places to develop Local Industrial Strategies 
(LIS) that will be developed locally and agreed with Government.  
 

9. Local Industrial Strategies will be long-term, based on clear evidence and aligned to 
the National Industrial Strategy. They will identify local strengths and challenges, 
future opportunities and the action needed to boost productivity, earning power and 
competitiveness. They will also guide the use of local funding streams and any 
spending from national schemes. In the current draft of the Leicester and 
Leicestershire LIS there is a clear reference to health and social care, and the 
importance of the sector.  This represents significant progress from 2016, where 
health and social care was not even included as a LLEP priority sector.  
 

10. In December 2018 Government published guidance on the establishment of Skills 
Advisory Panels (SAPs) to support LEPs to fulfil their local leadership role in the 
skills system by helping them understand their current and future skills needs and 
future labour market challenges. SAPs will be local partnerships aimed at 
strengthening the link between employers, local authorities, colleges and 
universities.  This presents a significant opportunity to influence local skills and 
training policy and possibly future funding streams. 

 
11. The Strong Economy is one of the outcomes for the County Council’s Strategic Plan. 

An emerging priority for this outcome is that Leicestershire has a highly skilled and 
employable workforce, which includes reference to the development of a resilient 
social care workforce to meet the growing demand.  
 

Delivery Planning and Implementation  
 

12. A summary of progress against the delivery plan is attached as Appendix A. The 
Steering Group is mindful not to duplicate existing initiatives and of its remit to add 
value as a partnership.  
 

13. Delivery of the plan is overseen by a Steering Group, and accountability is to the 
Enabling Growth Board (which is soon to be replaced by the Strong Economy 
Outcome Advisory Board). 
 

14. The Steering Group membership includes the three local authorities, University 
Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust, LLEP, Health Education England, Skills for Care, 
Department for Work & Pensions, Leicestershire Housing Services Partnership and 
Futures Group.  
 

15. At the July 2019 Steering Group meeting, the action plan will be reviewed with a 
view to simplifying its structure and having greater focus on a few key activities over 
the next 12 months. 
 

 

69



 

 
 
 
 
 

16. The Steering Group will also consider the risks to implementation during 2019/20, 
and how the risks might be mitigated, especially with regard to: 
 

a. Resource limitations 
b. Avoiding duplication 
c. Capacity of partners to deliver actions 
d. Changing priorities 

 
17. It is proposed that the Health and Wellbeing Board will receive a further progress 

update in 12 months’ time. 
 

18. An example of innovative activity underway within the partnership is Leicestershire 
County Council’s ‘Inspired to Care’ adult social care workforce initiative. Established 
in spring 2018, the project began with the baselining of local evidence to form a 
Leicestershire Workforce Statement. Its aims are aligned to the four themes of the 
sector growth plan outlined in paragraph 6 above. 
 

19. During its first year of operation, the project has delivered a number of schemes, 
including: 
 

a. tailored recruitment and retention support from industry specialists 
b. best practice training sessions, growing and deployment of an ambassador 

network 
c. piloting of values-based recruitment 
d. a partnership with the Leicester Mercury Care Awards 
e. the development of a website to attract local target audiences to a career in 

care, as well as resources for Leicestershire and Rutland adult social care 
providers.  

 
20. Evaluation of the initiative has shown that providers value its tailored approach, 

which is led by those with adult social care recruitment expertise. 
 

Consultation/Patient and Public Involvement 

 
21. The sector growth plan activity is largely aimed at businesses/partners within the 

sector, and therefore engagement has focussed on providers, and building up an 
understanding of the health and social care sector context by continuing to develop 
relationships with them. 

Resource Implications 

 
22. Wherever possible, bids will be made for additional resources not normally available 

to partners individually, but accessible through a partnership working approach. 
 

23. The Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF) supports the delivery of Leicestershire 
County Council’s Inspired to Care initiative. 

70



 

 
 
 
 
 

Background papers 

 
LLR Health and Social Care Sector Growth Plan  
https://www.llep.org.uk/strategies-and-plans/sector-growth-plans/health-social-care/  

Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 

 
None. 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Jon Wilson, Director of Adults and Communities 
0116 305 7454 
Jon.wilson@leics.gov.uk 
 
Caroline Boucher, Head of Business Intelligence 
0116 305 7262 
Caroline.boucher@leics.gov.uk 
 
Kate Revell, Commissioning Business Manager 
0116 305 8331 
kate.revell@leics.gov.uk 

Appendix 

 
LLR Health and Social Care Sector Growth Plan 2017 – Delivery Plan Progress, June 2019 

Relevant Impact Assessments 

 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
The plan has paid due regard to equality, diversity, community cohesion and human rights 
in its decision-making process. 
 
Partnership Working and associated issues 
 
Development of the sector growth plan was initiated by Leicestershire County Council, but 
from the outset has been progressed in partnership with organisations highlighted in the 
paragraphs above.  
 

71

https://www.llep.org.uk/strategies-and-plans/sector-growth-plans/health-social-care/
mailto:Jon.wilson@leics.gov.uk
mailto:kate.revell@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



V2         

         1 

 

Appendix A 

LLR Health & Social Care Sector Growth Plan 2017-2020 - Delivery Plan Progress, June 2019 

Theme Sub - theme Achievements to date RAG status 

1 

Improving 

the image of 

the sector 

 Communications 

 Media partnership 

 Case studies 

 Creation of the Inspired to Care (ITC) adult social care workforce project 
brand and related initiatives 

 Development prior to launch in July 2019 of an ITC website demonstrating 
local case studies of different job remits and why their incumbents enjoy their 
roles within social care. The website aims to attract people considering 
career opportunities from outside of the sector and also to promote the 
opportunities to progress within multiple disciplines in the sector 

 Creation of an engaging ITC Facebook page that showcases good news 
stories, including articles from providers and their staff 

 The I-care ambassador network has grown to one of the largest Skills for 
Care member networks in the East Midlands and members support with 
improving the image of the sector by representation at public events including 
open days, job fairs and school visits. There are currently 53 ambassadors 

 Partnership with and representation at the Care Awards hosted by the 
Leicester Mercury to recognise and publicise staff within the sector, within 
multiple disciplines 

 The Local Workforce Action Group (LWAG) is developing a promotional 
website, drawing on Northants' Best of Both Worlds website which attracts 
employees through promoting wider place / environment 

 

Green 

73



V2         

         2 

 

Theme Sub - theme Achievements to date RAG status 

2 

Supporting 

the sector 

with 

resilience 

and growth 

 Business acumen and 

support 

 Workforce development 

 Funding eligibility  

 Undertook pilot social media advertising for providers on Facebook including 
local staff case studies 

 Delivering one-to-one support and collective training sessions for providers 
around recruitment 

 Business support activities currently offered by the relevant LEPs, whilst not 
specifically focussing on the sector, are available to health and social care 
providers 

 Signposting to LEP Business Gateways in place 

 Skills for Care promotion of business support via Registered Manager 
networks 

 Funding eligibility changed on recent European Funding calls so that 
businesses in the health and social care sector can be supported 

 Influence on LEP Local Industrial Strategy (LIS) Evidence Group and 
currently influencing LIS content 
 

Green 

74



V2         

         3 

 

Theme Sub - theme Achievements to date RAG status 

3 

Developing 

and retaining 

the current 

workforce 

 Apprenticeship 

opportunities 

 Sharing good practice 

 Discretionary funding 

 Developing career 

pathways 

 Identify shortages 

 Social care workforce development posts developed and appointed to at 
Leicestershire County Council 

 Grew the I-Care Ambassador network to promote the social care sector 

 Delivered ITC training sessions around retention, culture change and valuing 
staff 

 A report by Skills for Care published in June 2017 considered the level of 
activity in integrated apprenticeships across the health and social care 
sectors, providing examples of good practice and identifying barriers and 
solutions to overcome these.  LWAG's Attraction & Retention Group also 
have an action to consider an integrated apprenticeship 

 Health Education England, Health Careers (NHS) and Skills For Care all 
provide information on career planning and development, including the 
opportunities offered by apprenticeships. 

 LWAG's Attraction and Retention Group and Skills for Care are both 
developing online career pathways tools 

 Engagement with Loughborough University to scope the availability of 
specialist training e.g. level 5+ dementia training 
 

Green 

75



V2         

         4 

 

Theme Sub - theme Achievements to date RAG status 

4 

Attracting a 

high quality 

workforce 

 Social care advisors 

(Ambassadors) to raise 

visibility 

 Develop career 

matching tool 

 Liaise with education 

and skills providers 

 Partnership recruitment 

strategies 

 Creation of the ITC website 

 Creation of Facebook page to attract people that may suit careers in care that 
are outside of the sector 

 Targeted sponsored advertising on Facebook to attract different 
demographics including return-to-work parents and active retirees 

 Ran a values-based recruitment tool pilot with providers based on 
psychometric testing  

 Delivered one-to-one support around recruiting to values to ensure quality 
recruits and a reduction in staff turnover 

 Engagement with schools / colleges currently supported through the 
Enterprise Advisor network 

 Work with Leicestershire Education Business Company (LEBC) to support 
National Citizen Service activities and general work experience with schools 

 Skills for Care support sector recruitment through comprehensive website 
and event attendance with LWAG also providing strategic support as part of 
the Leicester, Leicestershire & Rutland Sustainability & Transformation Plan 
developments. 

 Leicestershire County Council have offered internships to De Montfort 
University students over the summer  

 Participation in recruitment fairs 

 Link established with Leicester City Employment Hub 
 

Amber 

 

 

76



 
 

 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 11TH JULY 2019 

 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF HEALTH AND CARE 

INTEGRATION 

 

BETTER CARE FUND 2019/20 UPDATE 

 

Purpose of the report 

 

1. The purpose of this report is to update the Health and Wellbeing Board with the 

progress to finalise and submit the Leicestershire BCF Plan for 2019/20 to NHS 

England. 

 

Background 

 

2. The process to refresh the BCF plan for Leicestershire for 2019/20 took place in 

Q3/4 of 2018/19, with a report to the Health and Wellbeing Board on 14th March 

2019, setting out the components of the plan and the draft expenditure plan at 

that time.  

3. The national BCF policy framework for 2019/20 was published on April 10, 2019. 

At the time of writing this report the supporting planning guidance including 

confirmation of the final financial allocations per each CCG area, is still pending 

publication by NHS England (NHSE). 

 

Better Care Fund 2019/20 Financial Overview 

4. Appendix A to this report is the updated Leicestershire expenditure BCF plan as 

at July 3, 2019. The total (provisional) fund for 2019/20 is £59.8m. This reflects 

the proposed uplift of 1.79% to the CCG allocation into the BCF plan, a figure 

based on the original planning assumption given to CCGs and LAs earlier this 

year.  

5. However, this figure is still subject to change, as  confirmation is awaited  as to 

the exact figure for the County CCGs from NHSE. Partner contributions to the 

BCF plan are summarised in the table below: 

 

 

 

 

 

77 Agenda Item 10



 
 

Partner £’000 

West Leicestershire CCG 22,264 

East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG 16,428 

Leicestershire County Council (iBCF) 14,756 

Leicestershire County Council (Winter Pressures) 2,414 

Leicestershire County Council (DFG) 3,919 

Total 59,782 

 

6. Confirmed Disabled Facilities Grant allocations for Leicestershire have also been 

reflected in Appendix A. These allocations have already been transferred to each 

District Council, in line with the requirement to do so by the end of June 2019, in 

the specified amounts per the table below: 

 

District Council £’000 

Blaby DC 585 

Charnwood BC 993 

Harborough BC 452 

Hinckley & Bosworth BC 510 

Melton BC 304 

North West Leicestershire BC 670 

Oadby & Wigston Borough BC 406 

Total DFG Allocation 3,919 

 

7. Local Authorities have received confirmation of their winter planning allocation for 

2019/20. For Leicestershire County Council the figure is £2.4m. Appendix A 

reflects this allocation.  

8. The prioritisation and distribution of the funding was proposed and planned by 

adult social care, discussed and agreed with County CCGs, and with LLR’s 

Better Care Together partners via the LLR A&E Delivery Board. Examples of this 

investment include supporting care homes with telemedicine and trusted 

assessors, additional resources for the reablement pathway, including therapy 

support, additional packages of care and further support to seven day working. 

9. The 4 national BCF metrics and our current performance against each of these 

are shown at Appendix B.  

 

78



 
 

a. The 2019/20 targets for emergency admissions and delayed transfers 

of care are subject to the publication of the BCF planning guidance. 

Appendix B shows these at the same rate for 2019/20 for illustrative 

purposes.  

b. The metrics for permanent admissions to residential care settings and 

for reablement have been locally refreshed and are shown per the 

confirmed targets for 2019/20. 

c. Please note the definition against each metric, and that data is not 

available monthly for all 4 of these targets. 

 
10. The BCF plan is being delivered in line with the themes and priorities set out in 

the March Health and Wellbeing Board report, where a detailed presentation was 

given on each element of the plan, and in line with the expenditure plan at 

Appendix A. 

 
11. There is currently a small uncommitted element of spend, (see line 80 of 

Appendix A), totalling £631,000.  

 
12. Options for this have already been developed by the CCGs and Leicestershire 

County Council, but final decisions cannot be made until the exact CCG 

allocations are announced by NHSE. We aim to resolve this as soon as possible, 

preferably within July.  

 

13. Work in progress on the community services redesign continues and some in 

year adjustments to the expenditure plan (likely within Q3/4) are anticipated in 

line with these developments. This will involve adjusting existing community 

services investment lines within the BCF plan/financial envelope to reflect 

changes in service delivery models in year.  

 
14. NHS England will require each local area to complete a BCF planning template in 

order to submit their BCF Plan in due course. There will be an approximately six 

week period for this, from publication of the planning template and guidance, to 

the submission date. 

 
15. The planning template will need to include narrative about the models of care and 

integration being achieved via the BCF plan, how this links to and supports the 

wider LLR health and care transformation programme, evidence of how the BCF 

expenditure plan has been allocated and approved against the required 

categories and levels of spend, and supporting narrative and evidence on metrics 

and national conditions, for example how the high impact changes framework for 

DTOC is being achieved. 

 
16. Preparations are in hand to ensure the relevant information is completed on this 

template, which will be reviewed by the County Council and CCGs prior to 

79



 
 

submission, and with the input of other partners and stakeholders via the 

Leicestershire Integration Executive. 

 
17. It is anticipated that the BCF plan submission will take place before the next 

meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board (26th September). 

 
18. The Health and Wellbeing Board has already agreed, via the March 2019 

meeting, that the plan can be finalised by delegation, and the Board is requested 

to give their ongoing support for this approach. 

 
BCF Policy and Planning for 2020/21 – Implications for Leicestershire 

 
19. A national review of the BCF policy was undertaken earlier in 2019, however the 

outputs of this and the implications for the BCF policy framework for 2020/21 

have not yet been announced.  

 

20. The next iteration of BCF policy will reflect the NHS delivery requirements as set 

out in the NHS Long Term Plan, published in January 2019. 

 

21. There is also a dependency on wider announcements and timescales for the 

government’s Comprehensive Spending Review, along with dependency on any 

further policy or funding announcements for sustaining adult social care.  

 

22. Leicestershire’s BCF plan now contains many well-established and recurrently 

commissioned services reflecting models of care that have been developed 

and/or redesigned over the last 3-4 financial years.  

 
23. These include, for example, elements of Leicestershire’s community based 

urgent care services, integrated reablement, hospital discharge, domiciliary care, 

and a range of other community services, such as funding in support of 

neighbourhood teams, and Leicestershire’s prevention offer. 

 
24. While initial national messages indicate it is highly likely a revised national BCF 

framework and funding arrangement will be announced for 2020/21, a risk 

analysis of the Leicestershire BCF plan will take towards the end of Q2/earlyQ3, 

in particular to consider: 

 
a. Risks to NHS and LA commissioners, should there be significant 

changes to the national conditions and funding streams of the BCF 

plan from 2020, and any services that could be affected by this. 

b. Risks to the sustainability of adult social care and to the council’s 

medium term financial plan from 2020, should there be any major 

changes to the social care allocation assumptions in the future. 

c. Any mitigation that could or should be applied, related to the above, 

during the remainder of 2019/20. 

80



 
 

d. It should also be noted that the BCF Plan contains “IBCF funding”, a 

defined non-recurrent LA grant, with funds ceasing at the end of March 

2020. 

 

25. A refresh of the entire BCF plan will be undertaken in line with national 

timescales for 2020/21, with local work scheduled for Q3/4 of 2019/20. This will 

be an iterative process that will actively involve the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

In the meantime: 

 
a. BCF leads/plans across LLR will contribute to LLR-wide work to 

develop a local implementation plan per the requirements of the NHS 

Long Term Plan. 

 

b. Operational service implementation and integration will continue, in 

order to achieve integration priorities and models of care, per the 

Leicestershire BCF plan, and LLR’s Better Care Together Programme. 

 

c. Joint commissioning arrangements between the Leicestershire County 

Councils and CCG partners/other commissioners will continue to 

develop in line with our place-based joint commissioning workplan.  

 

d. A report on overall progress during 2019/20 with integration models of 

care and joint commissioning across the Leicestershire “Place” will 

come to the Health and Wellbeing Board in Q3. This will be 

accompanied by a new place based outcomes reporting dashboard, for 

the Board’s review and feedback. 

 
Recommendations 
 
26. The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note: 
 

a)   The updated BCF Expenditure Plan (Appendix A), which now 
incorporates Local Authority confirmed winter planning and DFG 
allocations, and that this is subject to further edits in order to commit 
remaining unallocated spend, once the final CCG allocations are 
announced; 

 
b)   The requirement to submit the 2019/20 BCF planning template to NHS 

England, when published, a process which is expected to take place 
ahead of the next scheduled meeting of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board; 

 
c) That the submission will be undertaken per the delegation agreed at 

the March meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board, overseen by the 
Leicestershire Integration Executive. 

 

81



 
 

d) That the Health and Wellbeing Board will be engaged in the following 
activities during 2019/20: 

 
i. Receiving a progress report on the delivery of integrated models 

of care and joint commissioning, along with a new place-based 
outcomes dashboard 

ii. Receiving a briefing about the emerging policy position for the 
BCF for 2020 and feedback from our local risk analysis 

iii. Engaging in the full refresh of the Leicestershire BCF plan for 
2020 onwards. 
 

Appendices 
 
Appendix A - Leicestershire expenditure BCF plan as at July 3, 2019 
Appendix B - National BCF metrics and our current performance 
Appendix C –BCF Plan on a Page 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
 
National BCF Policy Framework 2019/20 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/795314/Better_Care_Fund_2019-20_Policy_Framework.pdf 

Report to the Health and Wellbeing Board – 14 March 2019 – Better Care Fund Plan 

19/20 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1038&MId=5739&Ver=4 

NHS Long Term Plan  
https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/ 

NHS Long Term Plan Implementation Framework 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/NHS-LTP-Implementation-Framework.pdf 

 

Officer to Contact 

Cheryl Davenport 

Director of Health and Care Integration 

Tel: 0116 305 4212 

Email: cheryl.davenport@leics.gov.uk 

82

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/795314/Better_Care_Fund_2019-20_Policy_Framework.pdf
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1038&MId=5739&Ver=4
https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/NHS-LTP-Implementation-Framework.pdf
mailto:cheryl.davenport@leics.gov.uk


BCF Expenditure Plan 2019/20 - v0.10

Line

Scheme Name West Leics 

CCG

East Leics & 

Rutland CCG

Leics County 

Council

Total

Budget

Unified Prevention Offer

1 First Contact Plus 87,720 66,300 0 154,020

2 Total Unified Prevention Offer 87,720 66,300 0 154,020

Integrated Community Services

3 Primary Care Coordinators 18,975 15,345 0 34,320

4 Community Hospital Link Workers 121,074 92,106 0 213,180

5 Improving Mental Health Discharge 158,960 120,842 0 279,802

6 Lightbulb - Housing (Discharge) Enablement Team 0 0 100,000 100,000

7 GP Link Workers (ELRCCG) (Part of Care Coordination) 0 430,000 0 430,000

8 Care Coordination (WLCCG) - details TBC 209,510 0 0 209,510

9 LLR Community Integrated Neurology & Stroke Rehabilitation Service (CINSS) 177,522 105,760 0 283,282

10 Bradgate Unit - develop an integrated discharge pathway/team 0 0 30,600 30,600

11 Non-weight bearing pathway (case management function) 49,470 37,638 0 87,108

12 Discharge Pathway 3 - Therapy input 253,033 156,468 0 409,501

13 Discharge Pathway 3 - Case Management 24,716 15,284 0 40,000

14 Integrated Community Nursing 3,635,939 2,248,541 0 5,884,480

15 Intensive Community Support (CCG Minimum contribution) 1,690,652 1,481,046 0 3,171,698

16 Intensive Community Support (CCG additional contribution) 644,644 0 0 644,644

17 Integration of health & social care rehab/reablement services inc. 24 hour crisis 

response

0 0 64,085 64,085

18 Development of interim bed capacity (D2A) 0 0 230,474 230,474

19 Discharge Response Team 0 0 229,132 229,132

20 HTLAH - Community Based Review Team (2 week review team) 238,986 181,764 0 420,750

21 HTLAH Reablement - HART (Step Down) 356,400 271,080 0 627,480

22 HTLAH Reablement - Independent Providers (Step Up) 52,250 39,710 0 91,960

23 HTLAH Back Office Support 57,936 44,064 0 102,000

24 Crisis Response Service (CRS) - Social Care 330,990 251,736 0 582,726

25 Home First Review Team (2FTE) 0 0 110,000 110,000

26 LCC Home First/ASC Integration PMO 0 0 274,800 274,800

27 Enhance IAG Offer 0 0 70,000 70,000

28 Care Homes support / trusted assessment 0 0 120,000 120,000

29 Additional Link Workers 0 0 125,000 125,000

30 Enhanced Home First Offer 0 0 150,000 150,000

31 Additional capacity for redesign of reablement offer (TOM) 0 0 400,000 400,000

32 Reablement Case Management & Assessment Capacity 0 0 150,000 150,000

33 Adult Mental Health Step Down Provision 0 0 30,000 30,000

34 Total Integrated Community Services 8,021,057 5,491,384 2,084,091 15,596,532

ASC Sustainability, Workforce, Market Development

35 Multi-disciplinary review team for top 100 high cost placements (young adults with LD 

& autism)

0 0 186,946 186,946

36 Home Care Service (ASC protected) 6,273,000 4,771,000 0 11,044,000

37 Assessment and Review (ASC protected) 931,500 708,400 0 1,639,900

38 Residential Respite Service (ASC protected) 421,800 320,800 0 742,600

39 Assistive Technology 0 0 729,600 729,600

40 Development of external workforce 0 0 156,798 156,798

41 Nursing Care Packages (ASC protected) 2,044,400 1,554,900 0 3,599,300

42 Additional Dedicated Reablement Beds 0 0 100,000 100,000

43 Additional support for homecare/direct payments/residential packages 0 0 1,159,247 1,159,247

44 Stabilising the social care provider market 0 0 12,136,933 12,136,933

45 Total ASC Sustainability, Workforce, Market Development 9,670,700 7,355,100 14,469,524 31,495,324

Care Act

46 Care Act Support Pathway 257,900 196,100 0 454,000

47 Provision of enhanced carer support services in line with new carers strategy 0 0 103,628 103,628

48 Care Act Enablers 42,700 32,400 0 75,100

49 Total Care Act 300,600 228,500 103,628 632,728

Integrated Commissioning

50 Case Managers for Transforming Care to support inpatient reductions 0 0 120,933 120,933

51 Health & Social Care Protocol Training 58,109 44,207 0 102,316

52 CHC Commissioning capacity to support new CHC end to end process & ensure 

transfer to  assess D2A pathways

0 0 64,000 64,000

53 Transforming Care - Investment in Residential Care/Supported Living Reablement 

Unit

0 0 63,933 63,933

54 Capital contribution to capital costs of Transforming Care accommodation costs 0 0 10,000 10,000

55 Contribution to TCP Coordinator role (ELRCCG) 0 0 20,000 20,000

56 Post Diagnostic Community & In-Reach Service for people affected by Dementia 193,000 153,900 0 346,900

57 LD Short Breaks 598,525 260,582 0 859,108

58 Positive Behaviour Support Team - to support LD patients 0 0 110,000 110,000

59 Improving Quality in Care Homes 297,432 226,236 0 523,668

60 Total Integrated Commissioning 1,147,066 684,925 388,866 2,220,858

Urgent Care

61 Night Nursing Service 232,081 175,079 0 407,160

62 Loughborough Urgent Treatment Centre 905,931 0 0 905,931

63 Home Visiting Service 1,301,385 633,643 0 1,935,028

64 Urgent Care Centres (ELRCCG) 0 1,338,771 0 1,338,771

65 Total Urgent Care 2,439,397 2,147,493 0 4,586,890

Data Integration

66 Data Sharing Tool 36,082 27,418 0 63,500

67 Total Data Integration 36,082 27,418 0 63,500

Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG)

68 Blaby DC 0 0 585,028 585,028

69 Charnwood BC 0 0 992,908 992,908

70 Harborough BC 0 0 451,561 451,561

71 Hinckley and Bosworth BC 0 0 510,231 510,231

72 Melton BC 0 0 303,802 303,802

73 North West Leicestershire BC 0 0 670,314 670,314

74 Oadby and Wigston BC 0 0 405,615 405,615

75 Total DFGs 0 0 3,919,459 3,919,459

Programme Resources/Enablers

76 Integration Programme Management 202,980 154,224 54,594 411,798

77 Additional TU Business Consultancy Capacity 0 0 54,800 54,800

78 Additional Department Support for Transformation 0 0 15,000 15,000

79 Total Programme Resources/Enablers 202,980 154,224 124,394 481,598

TOTAL BCF SCHEMES SPEND 21,905,603 16,155,344 21,089,962 59,150,909

Future Investment - still to be confirmed

80 Future Investment Scheme (Social Care led) TBC 358,717 272,575 0 631,292

TOTAL FUTURE INVESTMENT 358,717 272,575 0 631,292

81 TOTAL EXPENDITURE 22,264,320 16,427,919 21,089,962 59,782,201

2019/20 SPENDING PLAN

83



This page is intentionally left blank



Metric Target
RAG-rated 

data

Data 

RAG
Trend Aim / Polarity DOT Commentary

METRIC 1: Permanent admissions of 

older people (aged 65 and over) to 

residential and nursing care homes, per 

100,000 population, per year

585 586.1 A
Good performance is represented 

by a fall in the figures 

The RAG-rated data shows the May forecast for 2019/20, based on CPLIs. The BCF target 

for 19/20 is a maximum of 850 admissions. The current full year forecast is 852 

admissions (or 586.1 per 100,000 population). Performance is RAG-rated amber and is 

statistically similar to the target.

METRIC 2: Proportion of older people 

(65 and over) who were still at home 91 

days after discharge from hospital into 

reablement / rehabilitation services

88.0% 90.4% G
Good performance is represented 

by a rise in the figures 

For hospital discharges between Dec '18 and Feb '19,  90.4% of people discharged from 

hospital into reablement / rehabilitation services were still at home after 91 days.  This is 

above the 19/20 target of 88%. Performance is RAG-rated green and is statistically similar 

to the target.

METRIC 3: Delayed transfers of care 

from hospital per 100,000 population
232.98 187.39 G

Good performance is represented 

by a fall in the figures 

In April there were 1,034 days delayed, a rate of 187.39 per 100,000 population against a 

target of 232.98. This is RAG-rated green and is statistically similar to the target. For the 

different attributable organisations (NHS, social care, and jointly attributable), 76% of 

these delays were attributable to the NHS, 15% attributable to Social Care and 9% Jointly 

attributable.

METRIC 4: Total non-elective 

admissions into hospital (general and 

acute), per 100,000 population, per 

month

856.28 846.71 G
Good performance is represented 

by a fall in the figures 

For the period Apr-19 to May-19 there have been 11,629 non-elective admissions, against 

a target of 11,597 – a variance of 32. This is RAG-rated as amber.

For the month of May there has been 5,888 non elective admissions, against a target of 

5,911 - a variance of -23.  The monthly rate is 846.71 against a monthly target of 856.28 

and this is RAG-rated green.

The RAG methodology is green if non-elective admissions/rate is less than or equal to the 

monthly target, amber if non-elective admissions/rate is between the monthly target and 

monthly minimum, and red if non-elective admissions/rate is greater than the monthly 

minimum.

TARGETS FOR METRICS 3 AND 4 ARE SUBJECT TO FINAL CONFIRMATION ONCE THE BCF PLANNING GUIDANCE FOR 2019/20 IS PUBLISHED

THE TARGET FIGURES PROVIDED FOR THIS REPORT FOR METRICS 3 AND 4 ARE SET AT THE SAME RATE AS FOR 2018/19

RAG Methodology Metrics 1 to 3:

RAG Methodology for Metric 4 is different to keep in line with other NEA reporting to LLR where targets have been set in consideration of the CCG operating plans:

GREEN if performance is less than or equal to the monthly target

RED if target is not met but performance is significantly worse than the target

AMBER if target is not met but performance is statistically similar to the target

GREEN if the target is met

RED if performance is greater than the monthly minimum

AMBER if non elective admissions/rate is between the monthly target and monthly minimum

85



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Supporting Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland’s five 
year strategy to transform health and care.

Better Care Fund 2017/19 – Integrating health and care
www.healthandcareinleicestershire.co.uk

The Leicestershire BCF plan, developed by the county’s Health and Wellbeing Board and Integration Executive, has a total pooled budget of £56 million provided by the council and NHS bodies. This is 
spent on developing and implementing plans for integrated health and care services, and to improve the quality and accessibility of services for people in local communities. The BCF plan includes specific 

funding allocated to councils to meet the increased pressures on Adult Social Care tackle delayed transfers of care and stabilise the local social care provider market.

Unified  
Prevention Offer
Prevention services for people and 
communities which support health, 
wellbeing and independence 
(accessed via First Contact Plus).

Home First
24/7 community care  
reducing delays in hospital 
discharge, preventing readmission 
and providing reablement.

Integrated  
Housing Support 
Lightbulb

One integrated housing service 
for Leicestershire, which supports 
safety, independence and wellbeing 
at home.

Integrated  
Domiciliary Care
Help to Live at Home

Leicestershire’s domiciliary  
care service providing help with 
day-to-day activities at home.

Integrated  
Locality Teams
GP services, community  
nursing and social care working 
hand-in-hand in each community 
to provide joint care and support.

Integrated  
Urgent Care
Clear, easy to access alternatives to 
A&E, with improved clinical triage 
and navigation. 

Assistive  
Technology
Utilising opportunities presented by 
new technology to support people 
to live more independently.

Data Integration
Care Planning and Care Delivery 
supported by an integrated 
electronic summary care record, 
which can be accessed by different  
health and care professionals.

Integrated  
Commissioning
Improving joint infrastructure 
(between Local Authority and  
Clinical Commissioning Groups)  
in priorities such as integrated 
personal budgets, learning  
disabilities and domiciliary care.

Falls  
Prevention
Leading the implementation of 
the new falls prevention and 
treatment service across Leicester, 
Leicestershire and Rutland.

S0
11

9

www.bettercareleicester.nhs.uk

Reduce the number of 
permanent admissions  
to residential and nursing 
homes (to no more than 890 
admissions) supporting people 
to stay in their homes for longer.

Increase the 
number of service 
users still at home 
91 days after 
reablement (to a 
minimum of 87%).

Reduce the number of 
delayed bed days in 
hospital (no more than 7.88 
delayed bed days per day 
per 100,000 population) by 
September 2018.

Reduce the number of 
emergency admissions 
(no more than 850.34  
admissions per 
100,000 population).

What 
improvements 
will we see?

@ ££

Leicester CityUniversity Hospitals of Leicester
NHS TrustEast Midlands Ambulance Service

NHS Trust Helping people. Shaping placesEngland

87



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 11TH JULY 2019 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES, 
LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
NEW MULTI-AGENCY CHILDREN’S SAFEGUARDING ARRANGMENTS 

 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to set out the new multi-agency children’s 

safeguarding arrangements  which will replace the current Leicestershire and 

Rutland Local Safeguarding Children Board (LRLSCB) by September 2019.  

2. The changes are required by the Children and Social Work Act 2017 and 
Working Together 2018 (statutory guidance on inter-agency working to 
safeguard and promote the welfare of children).  
 

Link to the local Health and Care System 
 

3. Safeguarding is everyone’s responsibility.  Health and care needs can be linked 
to safeguarding risk for adults and children and health and care practitioners 
can have opportunities to identify and respond to safeguarding risk not 
available to workers in other agencies. 

 
Recommendation  
 
4. It is recommended that the Health and Wellbeing Board notes the content of 

the report. 
 
Background  
 
5. Local Safeguarding Children Boards (LSCBs) were established by the Children 

Act 2004 which gave a statutory responsibility to each locality to have this 
mechanism in place. LSCBs were the key system in every locality of the 
country for organisations to come together to agree on how they would 
cooperate with one another to safeguard and promote the welfare of children.  

 
6. As explained above, Working Together 2018 (WT 2018) guidance covers the 

legislative requirements placed on individual services and sets out a framework 
for the local safeguarding partners to work together in accordance with the 
relevant legislation.  

 
7. A safeguarding partner in relation to a local authority area in England is defined 

under the Children Act 2004 (as amended by the Children and Social Work Act, 

89 Agenda Item 12



2017) as:  
 

i. the local authority Chief Executive;  
ii. the accountable officer of a clinical commissioning group for an 

area, any part of which falls within the local authority area; 
iii. the chief officer of police for an area, any part of which falls within 

the local authority area.  
 
8. The safeguarding partners must set out how they will work together locally and 

with any relevant agencies. Relevant agencies are those organisations and 
agencies whose involvement the safeguarding partners consider may be 
required to safeguard and promote the welfare of children with regard to local 
need.  
 

9. Once the local arrangements are in place and have been published, the 
safeguarding partners must also publish a report at least once in every 12-
month period that sets out what they have done as a result of the 
arrangements, including on child safeguarding practice reviews, and how 
effective these arrangements have been in practice.  

 
Existing Arrangements 
 
10. LSCBs are the key system across the UK to coordinate arrangements to 

safeguard and promote the welfare of children. The partnership working 
enables organisations to be held to account and ensures that safeguarding 
children remains high on the agenda across their region. 

 
11. Leicester and Rutland have a joint LCSB – the Leicestershire and Rutland 

Local Safeguarding Children Board (LRLSCB).  Leicester City Council has its 
own LCSB.   

 
12. The LRLSCB provides policies, procedures and guidance for safeguarding and 

promoting the welfare of children.  It provides advice and information, including 
by means of leaflets and posters which are free and available to download from 
its website.  The LRLSCB has formed strong links with the Voluntary and 
Community Sector and has a VCS Reference Group which also supports 
Leicester’s LCSB.   

 
13. The LRLSCB has an independent Chairman who submits Annual Reports and 

Business Plans to the member authorities each year (to the Cabinet, the 
Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee, and the Health and 
Wellbeing Board).  Leicestershire County and Rutland Councils each are 
represented on the LRLSCB by senior officers. 

 
New Arrangements 

 
14.  Lead officers from each of the key partners defined in the Children and Social 

Work Act 2017 (Leicestershire and Rutland Local Authorities, Leicestershire 
Police and the Clinical Commissioning Groups which cover the local authority 
area) have met to develop these proposals and considered the advice of, and 

90



previous reports to the Board, from the current Independent Chair. 
 

15. The new arrangements were published on 28th June 2019 in line with the 
requirements set out by the DfE. A copy of the new arrangements is at 
appendix 1. 

 
 

Officer to contact 
 
Jane Moore 
Director of Children and Family Services, 
Jane.moore@leics.gov.uk 
01163052649 

 
Appendix 
 
Leicestershire and Rutland Multi-Agency Safeguarding Arrangements 
 
Relevant Impact Assessments 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
16. The New Safeguarding Arrangements cover the safeguarding of all children 

across Leicestershire, therefore there are no specific implications. 
 
 

 
 

 

91

mailto:Jane.moore@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



June 2019

Leicestershire and Rutland 
Multi-Agency Safeguarding 
Arrangements 

Working Together for children and young people in Leicestershire 
and Rutland to be safe, well and achieve their full potential

93



2  Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements

Foreword

Our vision is for children & young people in Leicestershire and  
Rutland to be safe, well and achieve their full potential

Safeguarding the most vulnerable children in Leicestershire and Rutland has always been a priority for our 
organisations and all partners. In 2019 we are now strengthening our partnership arrangements to safeguard 
children.

The Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Children Partnership has been established to oversee the new 
Multi-Agency Safeguarding Children arrangements as required by the government guidance Working Together 
2018. 

All partners have equal and joint responsibility for local safeguarding arrangements and are committed to the 
principles that support these arrangements. 

As leaders we recognise that safeguarding children cannot be achieved in isolation from other organisations, 
partnerships, or our communities.  As a partnership we will provide leadership and joint accountability to 
provide protection, support and representation for those in greatest need. 

We believe in prevention and that it is better to act before harm occurs, while seeking the least intrusive 
response appropriate to the risk presented.

We want all agencies to focus on building strength and resilience within families rather than promoting 
dependency and ultimately this will increase positive outcomes for children, young people and families.

We aim to provide local solutions through services working with their communities, we will promote a child-
centred approach and continue to do our best to listen to the views and understand the needs of children and 
families in Leicestershire and Rutland. We will do our best to ensure people are supported and encouraged to 
make their own decisions with informed consent, but where children need to be protected we will take decisive 
action to safeguard them.

Safeguarding is everyone’s responsibility and for services to be effective each citizen, practitioner and 
organisation should play their part. 

We ask you the communities of Leicestershire and Rutland to play your part to help us understand the needs 
of children and families in our area and help us in preventing harm. 

As a Partnership we will be sticking to our principles and aims:

• for clear accountability 

• for clear and demonstrable influence and

• for equitable and fair contributions  
from all partners 

We will be continuing to make sure that effective systems are in place to protect children from abuse and 
to prevent impairment to children’s health and development.  We want to be sure that children grow up in 
circumstances consistent with the provision of safe and effective care. We will ensure that action takes place to 
continue to improve practice and to enable all children to have the best possible outcomes.

94



Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements  3

Contents

1. Purpose 4

2. Background 4

3. Partnership area and Safeguarding Partners  5

4. Principles and Aims 6

5. Accountability and Governance 8

6. Partnership Structure 8

7. Independent Scrutiny of the Arrangements  10

8. Funding the Arrangements 11

9. Membership and Role of Partnership Groups 11

10. Involvement of Relevant Agencies 15

11. Involvement of Schools and Early Years Settings  16

12. Involvement of Youth Custody and Residential Homes 18

13. Responding to the Voice of  Children and Families  19

14. Local Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews 20

15. Partnership Assurance Framework  21

16. Data and information transfer 26

17. Inter-agency training  26

19. Child Death Review arrangements 28

20. Resolution of disputes 29

   Endorsement of the safeguarding arrangements 30

   Appendix A - Role of Independent Advisor 31

95



4  Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements

1. Purpose
The purpose of this document is to set out how the safeguarding partners and other organisations will work 
together to safeguard children and young people in the Leicestershire and Rutland. These new arrangements 
are in response to the Children and Social Work Act 2017 and Working Together 2018 which replaces Local 
Safeguarding Children Boards (LSCB) with new local safeguarding partnership arrangements. 

2. Background
The Children Acts of 1989 and 2004 set out specific duties for local authorities, working with partner 
organisations and agencies, to safeguard and promote the welfare of all children in their area. Section 17 of 
the Children Act 1989 puts a duty on the local authority to provide services to children in need in their area; 
section 47 of the same Act requires local authorities to undertake enquiries if they believe a child has suffered 
or is likely to suffer significant harm. 

These duties can only realistically be discharged with the full co-operation of other partners, many of whom 
have individual duties when carrying out their functions under section 11 of the Children Act 2004. 

Working Together 2018 specifies that in order to safeguard children and to achieve the best possible 
outcomes, children and families should receive services in a coordinated way.  The guidance sets out that a 
safeguarding partner in relation to a local authority area in England is defined under the Children Act 2004 (as 
amended by the Children and Social Work Act, 2017) as: 

i. the local authority Chief Executive

ii. the accountable officer of a clinical commissioning group for an area, any part of which falls  
within the local authority area 

iii. the chief officer of police for an area, any part of which falls within the local authority area

Join-up locally rests with the safeguarding partners, the police, clinical commissioning groups and the 
local authorities, who have a shared and equal duty to agree and make arrangements to work together to 
safeguard and promote the welfare of all children in a local area. Leicestershire and Rutland have made its 
new arrangements mindful of the fact that the Leicestershire and Rutland Local Safeguarding Children Board 
(LRLSCB) was functioning well and had been endorsed as such by Ofsted in February 2017 which judged it to 
be ‘Good’ 

Lead officers from each of the safeguarding partners have met to develop these proposals and considered the 
advice of, and previous reports to the Board, from the current Independent Chair of the LRLSCB. The new 
arrangements were agreed and approved by the safeguarding partners’ governance bodies in June 2019. 

We are therefore very pleased to publish our arrangements in accordance with the requirements and inclusions 
prescribed in Working Together 2018 (pp 79-80) which are:

• arrangements for the safeguarding partners to work together to identify and respond to the needs of 
children in the area 

• arrangements for commissioning and publishing local child safeguarding practice reviews 

• arrangements for independent scrutiny of the effectiveness of the arrangements

96



Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements  5

3. Partnership area and 
Safeguarding Partners 

LEICESTERSHIRE

LEICESTER

RUTLAND

Leicester City will have separate multi-agency safeguarding arrangements, however there are several partners 
that work across both areas, so the Leicestershire and Rutland Partnership will maintain close ties with the 
Leicester City arrangements. The two partnerships will be supported by a number of joint meetings across 
Leicestershire, Leicester and Rutland and work jointly on priorities and projects where relevant.

The Partnership is led by the Safeguarding Partners as defined in Working Together 2018. Locally these are:

• Leicestershire County Council 

• Rutland County Council  

• Leicestershire Police 

• West Leicestershire Clinical Commissioning Group

• East Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical Commissioning Group

Leicestershire and Rutland Council are represented respectively by the Director of Children and Family 
Services and the Director of People.   

Leicestershire Police are represented by the Head of Serious Crime

The West Leicestershire and East Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical Commissioning Groups are represented 
respectively by the Accountable Officer and Chief Nurse.  

These representatives represent the entirety of their organisation.

Each of these safeguarding partners has representatives at appropriate level on the LRSCP Planning and 
Delivery Group and Sub-groups.

Other relevant agencies locally including schools will be involved with the new Partnership arrangements as 
outlined in section 10 and 11.

The new arrangements 
will cover the local 
authority areas of 
Leicestershire and 
Rutland; 

97



6  Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements

4. Principles and Aims

Principles 
The principles of the new arrangements are: 

• There should be clear governance and leadership from the safeguarding partners which have equal and 
joint responsibility for local safeguarding arrangements

• a sharpened focus on a small number of critical identified priorities that maximise the effectiveness of the 
partnership arrangements

• appropriate scrutiny of multi-agency frontline practice and evidence of the impact of lessons learned from 
audits and reviews

• clarity of accountability and expected contributions of agencies to the arrangements

• effective processes to ensure statutory requirements for consideration of serious incident notifications, rapid 
review and local child safeguarding practice reviews including arrangements for funding of these

• improved efficiency - reduction in duplication of reporting and demand for meeting time

• clearly defined business support functions with capacity to adequately support the arrangements

• transparent budget agreements between the statutory partners

• a published description of how independent scrutiny of the arrangements will be ensured

• consistency and alignment across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland area where possible

• links to other structures across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland

Aims 
The strategic aims of partnership are to ensure that effective systems are in place which support and enable 
local organisations and agencies to work together in a system where:

• children are safeguarded and their welfare promoted 

• partner organisations and agencies collaborate, share and co-own the vision as to how to achieve improved 
outcomes for vulnerable children  

• organisations and agencies challenge appropriately and hold one another to account effectively 

• there is early identification and analysis of new safeguarding issues and emerging threats

• learning is promoted and embedded in a way that local services for children and families can become more 
reflective and implement changes to practice 

• information is shared effectively to facilitate more accurate and timely decision making for children and 
families

98



Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements  7

With the intention of:

• Understanding the perspectives of children and young people by asking for their views, listening to them 
and letting them know what we have done as a result

• Focusing on the impact of all forms of child abuse and neglect

• Learning and disseminating learning, from local and national research and case reviews

• Continuing to identify indicators of the prevalence of all forms of child abuse and neglect in Leicestershire 
and Rutland and to measure progress in tackling this

• Maintaining an overview of the range of provision, services and interventions delivered to reduce the impact 
of abuse and neglect

• Supporting and scrutinising steps taken to reduce risk of abuse and neglect

• Monitoring, supporting and assuring the improvement of the quality of practice and impact across partner 
agencies 

• Improving and integrating performance monitoring

• Supporting communication and information sharing 

• Identifying the barriers to translating lessons learned into improved practice and strategies to overcome 
these barriers

• Turning findings from learning and quality assurance into measurable action

99



8  Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements

5. Accountability and Governance
Strong leadership is critical for the new arrangements to be effective in bringing together the various 
organisations and agencies. It is important therefore that the lead representative from each of the safeguarding 
partners plays an active role. 

Clear governance is essential, ensuring that where other Boards or bodies have lead accountability for key 
areas of work, the multi-agency safeguarding arrangements do not duplicate that work, but offer a critical 
friend/advocacy role. 

To be effective these new arrangements will continue to link to other strategic partnership work happening 
locally to support children and families for example the Health and Wellbeing Board, Strategic Partnership 
Board and Youth Offending Service Management Board.

The governance arrangements are further supported by the requirement for the safeguarding partners to 
publish the local safeguarding arrangements and to report at least once in every 12-month period setting 
out what has been done as a result of the arrangements, including child safeguarding practice reviews and 
how effective these arrangements have been in practice.  More detail on the annual report and measuring 
effectiveness of the arrangements can be found in section 15.

6. Partnership Structure
The structure of the new Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Children Partnership is as follows.

Safeguarding 
Children  

Partnership (LR)

Planning and  
Delivery Group

Case Review  
Group (LR)

Multi Agency Audit 
Activity (LLR)

Child Death 
Overview  

Panel (LLR)

Multi-Agency 
Learning and 
Development  
Group (LLR)

Policy and 
Procedures Group 

(LLR)

Young Peoples  
Advisory Group (LR)

100



Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements  9

The structure of the Partnership was agreed at Leicestershire and Rutland Cabinet meetings, CCG Governing 
bodies and Leicestershire Police Senior Management Team. The structure has been developed in discussion 
with Statutory partners for Leicester City and groups marked (LLR) will work across this Partnership and the 
Leicester safeguarding children arrangements.

The LRSCP meets quarterly. 

The Planning and Delivery Group also meets quarterly to scrutinise the work of the sub-groups; monitor and 
respond to assurance reports; agree learning and development arrangements; and carry out the business of 
the Partnership. 

Each subgroup has its own terms of reference and meets between the Planning and Delivery Group meetings.

The Planning and Delivery Group will report the overall actions and the outcomes of all subgroup, and other 
activity, to the Partnership.

The terms of reference for all groups include details of:

• remit

• membership and

• frequency of meetings

These will be available on the partnership website www.lrsb.org.uk/lrscp 

The safeguarding partners from the LRLSCP will continue to meet with the safeguarding partners for the 
Leicester City area for a leadership discussion to include sharing intelligence, reviewing key priorities and 
strategic commissioning.

In addition to the above structure, task and finish groups will be commissioned as necessary on specific 
themes in line with in-year priorities and where possible on a Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland basis.

Business Support
The entire LRSCP structure is supported by the Leicestershire & Rutland Safeguarding Board Business Unit 
comprising of:

• Business Office Manager 

• Board Officers

• Safeguarding Learning Project Development Officer and Project Officer (shared with Leicester City 
arrangements)

• Administrative support

The Business Unit is shared with the Leicestershire & Rutland Safeguarding Adults Board and currently hosted 
by Leicestershire County Council.

101



10  Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements

7. Independent Scrutiny of the Arrangements 
 WT 2018 defines independent scrutiny of safeguarding arrangements as:
 

• providing assurance in judging the effectiveness of multi-agency arrangements to safeguard and 
promote the welfare of all children in a local area

• part of a wider system which includes the independent inspectorates’ single assessment of the 
individual safeguarding partners and the Joint Targeted Area Inspections 

• objective, acts as a constructive critical friend and promotes reflection to drive continuous improvement 

• considering how effectively the arrangements are working for children and families as well as for 
practitioners, and how well the safeguarding partners are providing strong leadership and agree with 
the safeguarding partners how this will be reported 

Working Together 2018 identifies that the published arrangements should set out the plans for independent 
scrutiny; how the arrangements will be reviewed; and how any recommendations will be taken 

The local definition for the purpose of this function is scrutiny by persons not employed by any of the statutory 
partners named in WT 2018. Further to that scrutiny of the wider partnership arrangements and relevant 
agencies contribution should be done by persons not employed by those agencies. The arrangements for 
independent scrutiny will be reviewed as part of the annual report.

The overall scrutiny of the safeguarding arrangements across the two counties is, of course, provided by the 
LRSCP. The LRSCP requests individual assurance reports from partners on a regular basis.

In terms of independent scrutiny, the Safeguarding Partners have agreed that, for the foreseeable future, 
the role of Independent Advisor will be retained for LRSCP to provide external and independent scrutiny of 
safeguarding arrangements including decisions relating to local practice reviews and notifications to national 
bodies. The role of the Independent Advisor is included as Appendix A. The Independent Advisor will also 
participate in an annual safeguarding learning and development event for safeguarding partners to promote 
transparency and participation in statutory inspections as appropriate.

Links to the voluntary sector will be maintained through the LRSCP VCS reference group. 

The Lead Member for Children’s Services in local authorities holds key political accountability for ensuring that 
the needs of all children and young people, including the most disadvantaged and vulnerable and their families 
and carers, are addressed. In doing so, they work closely with other local partners to improve the outcomes 
and well-being of children and young people. Therefore, the Leicestershire and Rutland Lead Members for 
Children and Education will also attend LRSCP meetings, as in the former arrangements, in a participant 
observer role to maintain their independence to facilitate this. 

Hearing and Responding to the ‘voice’ of children and young people will run through all LRSCP business and 
LRSCP Business Plan. A dedicated Young People’s Advisory Group reports to the LRSCP on the views of 
children and young people.  Young people from the Leicestershire and Rutland Youth Councils and Children in 
Care Councils are directly involved in the business of LRSCP.  

The option of commissioning peer reviews of arrangements remains open. 

Relevant agencies will also form part of the scrutiny of the arrangement agreed by the statutory partners. This 
allows for scrutiny questions to be asked of and sought from relevant agencies named in the arrangements 
on specific matters, as long as this is within their scope of knowledge and understanding e.g. schools may be 
asked to comment on their experience of the effectiveness of early help arrangements, excluding those which 
they have a part in delivering. 

102



Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements  11

8. Funding the Arrangements
The arrangements will be funded through equitable contributions from the safeguarding partners.

The budget for 2019/20 has been agreed. The budget is in two parts, the core budget to support the 
arrangements and a formal agreement between the statutory partners on funding future case reviews has 
been agreed on a case by case basis. Details of funding and resources will be published in the LRSCP Annual 
Report each year. 

9. Membership and Role of Partnership Groups

The Safeguarding Children Partnership
The LRSCP will be the strategic leadership group. It will consist of Director level representatives from the five 
statutory safeguarding partner organisations. Other organisations will be invited to attend as appropriate. 
The LRSCP will be chaired by the Independent Advisor. In the first year the partnership will meet quarterly 
following which the meeting frequency will be reviewed.

Membership of the Partnership is defined in the LRSCP Terms of Reference as being representatives at senior 
leadership level with sufficient seniority to:

• speak with authority for the safeguarding partner they represent 

• take decisions on behalf of their organisation or agency and commit them on policy, resourcing and 
practice matters 

• hold their own organisation or agency to account on how effectively they participate and implement the 
local arrangements 

Anyone entrusted with attending in their place would need to have similar delegated authority.

All partner representatives are expected to take an active part in disseminating information and learning 
throughout their organisations.

LRSCP retains the flexibility to co-opt additional partner representatives at partnership or sub-group level as 
required. 

In an increasingly ‘digital’ world it is anticipated that an increasing amount of the work of the Partnership will 
be carried out using electronic and tele-communications between face-to-face meetings.  The use of media 
and virtual technology will increase the capacity of the Partnership and the involvement of partner agencies.

103



12  Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements

Planning and Delivery Group
The Group will co-ordinate the business of the LRSCP and ensure the delivery of the business plan. 
Membership of this group will be based on the existing LRLSCB Executive Groups and must include Assistant 
Director level representation, Heads of Safeguarding or Safeguarding leads from safeguarding partners and 
relevant agencies as outlined in section 8, and chairs of subgroups. Others will be invited as necessary. The 
group would be chaired by an independent advisor or senior representative of a safeguarding partner. 

The Group, and notably the Chair, will have a significant workload including ensuring delivery of the LRSCP 
business plan, commissioning and managing subgroups, and scrutinising assurance reports and new policy. It 
will report directly to the LRSCP. The Planning and Delivery Group leads on work to evaluate the effectiveness 
of local safeguarding practice:

• Providing Scrutiny in monitoring the work of LRSCP subgroups 

• Reviewing and acting on performance information and single and multi-agency audit findings where 
they affect safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children

• Making recommendations to the Partnership in regard to supporting, commending and challenging 
safeguarding policy and practice across the workforce 

The Planning and Delivery Group ensures that the ‘business’ agreed at strategic level by the Partnership is 
carried out effectively. 

The Planning and Delivery Group is also charged with the overview of multi-agency inspection activity, 
preparation and outcomes and for monitoring actions in response to these.  

Members of the Planning and Delivery Group will have knowledge and expertise in child protection and 
safeguarding plus knowledge and influence regarding performance and practice. 

Young People Advisory Group
This will comprise around a dozen members with flexibility to allow new representatives to join. The group 
would work with the Planning and Delivery Group to ensure the views of young people help shape the 
LRSCP’s priorities and to give feedback on its work. The group will formally lead a session of the LRSCP once 
each year and will have a standing item on the agenda of the other meetings should it wish to contribute.

Policy and Procedures Group
This group will consist of officers from across the safeguarding partnership, including representatives of the 
five safeguarding partners, and would continue wherever possible to be run as a joint group with the Leicester 
arrangements and report to the Planning and Delivery Group.  Responsibility for the review and evaluation of 
the threshold document will be held by the Policy and Procedures Group.

104



Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements  13

Multi Agency Learning and Development Group  
(Leicestershire, Rutland and Leicester)
The LRSCP will carry out a Training Needs Analysis each year (as is done at present by the LRLSCB) to 
identify what training is required locally. This will be informed by partnership priorities, the outcome of reviews 
and audits, and other local/national issues.

Training, both face-to-face and online, will be commissioned based on this for the year ahead with a margin of 
flexibility built in to address any emerging priorities and issues. This will be co-ordinated by the multi-agency 
learning and development group run jointly with Leicester arrangements.  For more information see section 17.

Case Review Group (CRG)
The Case Review Group (CRG) will consider referrals for local Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews and receive 
notifications and referrals; ensure rapid reviews are undertaken and reports are prepared to be sent to the 
National Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel. The group will commission and quality assure reviews and 
consider and disseminate learning from reviews (local, other local authorities and national). More information 
on these processes can be found in section 14.

This group is already in place and work to achieve a common process and alignment with Leicester City is 
underway. This will continue in the new arrangements through the Case Review Group. Working Together 
2018 guidance requires that there should be independent scrutiny of the arrangements to identify and review 
serious child safeguarding cases. This will be provided by the independent advisor. Initially the Chair of the 
group will be the local authority lead from Leicestershire County Council with responsibility for notifications to 
the national Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel. Membership will consist of safeguarding leads from 
safeguarding partners and relevant agencies as outlined in Section 8.

105



14  Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements

Child Death Overview Panel 
The partnership will link with the Child Death Overview Panel (CDOP) which operates the Child death review 
arrangements to enable reciprocal reporting of any safeguarding concerns. This will be provided by the Chair of 
the CDOP.  More information on this can be found at section 19. 

Multi-Agency Audit arrangements
This will focus activity and emphasis on quality assurance of frontline services through multi-agency audits. 
The function will provide constructive challenge and gather views of multi-agency practitioners to test 
assurance reports from statutory partners. These arrangements will be commissioned and managed by the 
Planning and Delivery Group.

Inter-Board Partnership Arrangements 
Of key importance to the new Partnership is that a focus on children and young people is maintained by all 
partnerships when addressing contextual safeguarding such as extra-familial threats. These threats can take a 
variety of different forms and children can be vulnerable to multiple threats, including exploitation by criminal 
gangs and organised crime groups such as county lines; trafficking and modern slavery, online abuse; sexual 
exploitation and the influences of extremism leading to radicalisation.

These arrangements have resulted in, among other initiatives, joint training, joint awareness-raising and 
contribution to each other’s plans and strategies.

An opportunity for constructive support and challenge between these partnerships is sustained by this 
arrangement. The Safeguarding Children Partnership will have key links with, provide information to and seek 
relevant assurances through the following partnership boards:

• Strategic Partnership Board (including the Vulnerability Executive that leads the strategic overview and 
delivery of the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland response to the exploitation of children)

• Youth Offending Service Management Board

• Leicestershire Health and Well Being Board

• Rutland Health and Well Being Board

• Leicestershire Children and Family Partnership

• Rutland Children’s Trust

• Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Adults Board

• Leicestershire Safer Communities Strategy Board

• Rutland Community Safety Partnership

106



Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements  15

10. Involvement of Relevant Agencies
Whilst safeguarding is the responsibility of all agencies a number of agencies have specific responsibilities as 
outlined in Working Together 2018.  Relevant agencies identified by the Partnership will be involved in the 
LRSCP in different ways as follows.  

This difference takes account of different roles and is designed to ensure that those who meet face to face have 
a primary concern in safeguarding children, whilst those organisations which undertake another role are still 
fully involved in the child safeguarding business of the LRSCP, despite other calls on their time and attention.  

The following relevant agencies play a key role in safeguarding children through the services they provide in the 
area and the majority of these operate across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland. These will be members 
of the Planning and Delivery Group and provide representatives on other subgroups as required.  They may 
attend the Partnership meeting or act as ‘virtual members’ receiving minutes of board meetings and attending 
as necessary, they will provide assurance directly or through their commissioners as identified in section 15:

• University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust (UHL) 

• Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust (LPT) 

• District and Borough Councils in Leicestershire (Blaby District Council, Charnwood Borough Council, 
Harborough District Council, Hinckley & Bosworth Borough Council, Melton Borough Council, North 
West Leicestershire District Council, Oadby & Wigston Borough Council)

• Providers of Probation Services: National Probation Service and Derbyshire, Leicestershire, 
Nottinghamshire & Rutland Community Rehabilitation Company 

• Leicestershire Fire and Rescue Service

District and Borough Councils will normally be represented at meetings by a single individual nominated from 
across all districts. 

Schools and Voluntary and Community Sector agencies play a significant role in the lives of children 
and young people and have a significant role in safeguarding children.  Due to the number and variety 
of these relevant agencies they will provide assurance and engage with the partnership through specific 
arrangements.

Arrangements for engagement with schools and early years providers are outlined in section 11.

Voluntary and Community Sector agencies will be engaged through a Voluntary and Community Sector 
Reference Group for the Partnership shared with the Leicester Partnership. This will provide a two-way link 
with the sector to support effective safeguarding in voluntary sector agencies and across the partnership.  The 
reference group will have a representative on the Planning and Delivery Group.

The following relevant agencies provide or commission services that play an important role in safeguarding 
children and young people.  They will be ‘virtual members’ of the partnership to receive minutes of board 
meetings and provide assurance and be involved in the partnership as required as they work across the region 
and issues of capacity may prevent attendance at meetings:

• CAFCASS 

• East Midlands Ambulance Service

• NHS England

Other commissioned health service providers operating in the area or providing services to residents of the area 
will provide assurance through their commissioners and be involved directly in the partnership as required.

107



16  Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements

11. Involvement of Schools and Early Years Settings 
In Leicestershire there are:

• 47 secondary schools

• 222 primary schools

• 3 special schools 

• 14 independent special schools

• 14 independent schools

• 6 FE Colleges

• 1 pupil referral unit

In Rutland there are: 

• 3 secondary schools

• 17 primary schools

• 3 independent schools

• 2 independent special schools

• 1 maintained specialist nursery school 

• No FE colleges

• No pupil referral units

At time of publication, in Leicestershire 138 of the primary schools and 46 secondary schools and in Rutland 
15 of the primary schools and all three secondary schools had been granted academy status. 

Each Local Authority will produce a yearly Safeguarding through Education report for the Safeguarding 
Partnership highlighting:

• Confirmation that schools and other education providers are adhering to Safeguarding in Education 
guidance regardless of status

• Ofsted report results published during the year and issues highlighted in reports regarding positive 
safeguarding practice or concerns 

• What action has been taken to address concerns

• Analysis of responses to the Schools Safeguarding Survey/Safeguarding through Education audit carried 
out by Local Authorities on behalf of the partnership 

• Other key areas identified through the activity of Local Authority Children services in and with schools

• Other training and safeguarding activity undertaken by the local authority education services to support 
schools

The partnership will seek written assurance from Heads and Chairs of Governors from any schools, including 
multi academy trusts and independent schools who have not responded to requests for information using the 
power in Working Together 2018 (s28-29).

There is a programme of training/ updates over the course of the academic year which is on offer to early years 
settings and schools, including governors.  All schools, including the independent sector, are included in the 
invitation, as are other settings such as out of school clubs and the MoD welfare team working in Rutland.

Education partners in the local authority collate information from schools via a Schools Safeguarding Survey/ 
Safeguarding through Education audit.  The Partnership will use this to ask specific questions each year about 
priority areas. 

108



Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements  17

Headteachers meetings and Local Authority education briefings and bulletins will also be used as a mode of 
communication and engagement.

Early Years settings will be engaged through the Local Authorities.

Leicestershire
In Leicestershire there are separate, once a term, meetings of heads of secondary, primary and specialist 
schools. These will be used where appropriate for the safeguarding partners to engage with schools

Regular headteacher briefings are distributed to all schools which include safeguarding updates.

Regular meetings of school designated safeguarding leads will be considered and plans for this will be 
developed for implementation in 2020.  

Rutland
In Rutland there is a designated safeguarding leads forum held once every main term.

In addition, all education providers including the early years sector and out of school childcare providers are 
able to access safeguarding updates at Safeguarding through Education roadshow events.

The monthly Education Bulletin, which is distributed to the wider education and childcare sector, not just 
schools, has safeguarding updates and guidance at the start of every edition.  

The Head of Children’s Social Care in Rutland undertakes annual Keeping in Touch Meetings with all Rutland 
schools.

Social workers are present in the three Secondary Academies on a weekly basis. Plans are for this to be 
offered to primary schools in the future.

109



18  Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements

12. Involvement of Youth Custody and  
Residential Homes

The Youth Offending Team reports to Youth Offending Board and will continue to report to the Partnership via 
the Local Authority Children’s Services representatives on the Partnership. 

The Youth Offending Team is represented on the LRSCP Planning and Delivery Group through Leicestershire 
County Council and on other sub-groups as required.

There are no Youth Custody homes within the local authority areas but those which are in the region which 
house young people from the area will be required to report on arrangements as and when necessary.

The Local Authorities do not run any residential homes for children. The Local Authorities take oversight of 
all issues raised in Ofsted reports for residential homes in the area and follow up those where local authority 
looked-after children are placed, with appropriate monitoring and action to support good outcomes for those 
children.

Assurance will be sought from providers and the local authorities about the safe and effective running of all 
independent residential homes and foster care agencies who have a responsibility to notify the local authority 
of safeguarding issues. This includes children from Leicester City placed in Leicestershire and Rutland and vice 
versa.

The partnership has procedures for notification of transfer of Children Looked After and safeguarding incidents 
regarding Children Looked After placed out-of-area, and placed in area by other authorities.  A partnership 
network brings together professionals to oversee and address issues with notifications and Local Authorities 
follow up when notifications have not been made.

The Leicestershire and Rutland Councils Corporate Parenting Boards have responsibility for all children looked 
after by the Councils, including those placed outside the area. 

110



Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements  19

13. Responding to the Voice of  
Children and Families 

Change start of first Paragraph to “Hearing and Responding to the voice and lived experience of children is a 
recurring thread throughout everything that the Safeguarding Partnership does and the LRSCP Business Plan.

LRSCP’s Young People’s Advisory Group (YPAG) was set up specifically to ensure that partners not only to 
hear the voice of the child at individual and at service level, but are challenged to say what was being done to 
respond to it. 

This group covers all children and young people but ensures an appropriate focus on those in need of help and 
support.

Subgroups are expected to report in every Highlight Report to the Partnership on how the group has 
considered the voice of children and young people.

Each partner must include an outline in the Agency Assurance Report of how the agency ensures that they 
appropriately listen and respond to the voice of children and young people.

Audit work includes a focus on how parents and carers have been included in the planning for children.

Parents and carers who may be involved in cases which are reviewed are informed of the review and asked if 
they wish to make their own contribution.  Advocates are offered if these would be appropriate.

111



20  Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements

Processes  
14. Local Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews
The process for serious incident notifications in Leicestershire and Rutland has been updated by the Local 
Authorities in line with Working Together 2018.

On being informed of a notifiable incident, the LRSCP will undertake a Rapid Review in line with published 
guidance in Working Together 2018 in order to make decisions and to inform the initial recommendation of the 
LRSCP to the Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel (the Panel) about whether a local child safeguarding 
practice review is required.

The responsibility for considering cases for Child Safeguarding Practice Review and for informing the Panel lies 
with the Case Review Group (CRG). Final decision making will be by the Independent Advisor.

The Terms of Reference for the CRG will cover all requirements and timescales in Chapter 4 of Working 
Together 2018 including notifications of serious incidents.

A process map is being created with procedures for considering notifiable incidents and non-notifiable, but 
serious, incidents for safeguarding review. 

Local Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews will be commissioned using regional and national information on 
known reviewers and their expertise.  These reviewers will be assessed and selected by representatives of 
LRSCP and the CRG based on previous work and experience, recommendations and via personal interview. 

Reviews will be published, as outlined in Chapter 4 of Working Together 2018, on the LRSCP website. 

Exceptions to publication will be discussed with the national Child Safeguarding Review Panel.

Each Review also results in an action plan which will be monitored by the CRG and then actions and 
outcomes re-reviewed and or/audited to ensure that they are embedded in practice.

Each review results in a plan to disseminate learning across a multi-agency workforce.

Any Serious Case Reviews not completed by the Leicestershire & Rutland Safeguarding Children Board 
(LRLSCB) by 29 September 2019 will be handed over to the Safeguarding Partners to consider how they are 
taken forward.  

112



Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements  21

15. Partnership Assurance Framework 

The purpose of the assurance framework is for the partnership to:

• be assured of continuous improvement in the safeguarding effectiveness of local arrangements for 
children

• promote and ensure effectiveness of multi-agency collaboration

• secure and evidence improvement in practice from multi-agency assurance reports, audits, local 
practice reviews and training and development

At the heart of this assurance framework are five simple questions: 

• Are we improving our ability to keep children safe and how do we know? 

• What did we do?

• How much did we do? 

• How well did we do it?  and 

• What difference did it make?

What are we 
assuring? 

What does good 
look like?

Quantative data 
provided by 

safeguarding partners 
in assurance reports

Qualitative evidence 
ie case reviews, audits,  

inspections

Independent scrutiny 
and guidance

Public transparency-
annual report, 

outcome of business 
plans, published 

reports

Engagement with 
young people e.g. 

young peoples 
advisory group, youth 

council, children in 
care council

Capturing the views 
of frontline sta�

113



22  Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements

Assurance Framework

For the partnership to achieve a good understanding of the effectiveness of safeguarding arrangements it 
needs:

• a shared analysis of intelligence about practice which leads to action to improve standards of multi-
disciplinary assessment, planning, intervention and review

• to identify the ‘key focus areas’ that are a priority

• to obtain data and information from an appropriately balanced range of sources, using a range of 
methods

• The process requires a systematic means of the partnership providing opportunities for their staff to:

• reflect on the quality and impact of their practice

• develop their curiosity and enhance clarity of thinking

• access the support to deal constructively with the emotional and psychological impact of the work

A variety of measures will be used for the evaluation of effectiveness as follows: 

A system of reports will ensure that the partnership receives assurance from each organisation on their 
safeguarding children arrangements.  This includes information on how they have addressed the partnership 
priorities and how the ‘lived experience’ of children has been considered. 

In addition to assurance reports from statutory partners and relevant agencies each subgroup will report to the 
Planning and Delivery Group via a highlight report on activity, actions and performance and information on the 
subgroup’s work.

A quarterly ‘How are we doing?’ assurance report will be produced by the Planning and Delivery Group. This 
will assess impact against agreed outcome statements, draw together analysis of available evidence and be 
a composite report to the Partnership highlighting what we are doing well, areas for further exploration and 
actions for the next period.

The Partnership and each subgroup will keep an action log which is reviewed and completion recorded. 
Actions and outcomes from all case audits and case reviews are reviewed and re-reviewed to ensure that they 
are embedded in practice. 

The Partnership will also seek assurance of safeguarding arrangements and practice from a range of named 
relevant partners including:

• District Councils

• Early years settings and schools (including independent schools, free schools and academies) via the 
local authority education lead

• Voluntary Sector

• Health Providers via the commissioners

114



Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements  23

Safeguarding Assurance Cycle Process
The diagram below outlines the safeguarding assurance cycle for the Partnership:

Gather intelligence - How are we doing? 
This phase will include the following elements:

• Each member of the partnership will self-assess whether it is being effective in keeping children safe

• The self-audit will meet the requirements of the section 11 assurance process and will capture 
information on safeguarding practices among local organisations. It covers safeguarding policies and 
procedures; information sharing; recording incidents of concern; recruitment of staff and volunteers, 
training and safer employment 

• Questionnaires or focus groups to gather the views of professionals on specific gap or focus areas 

• A deep dive approach as appropriate to look at one of the key focus areas in depth each year

• Review one key focus area shared by several partners at each meeting

• An annual quality assurance event where the main messages from the agency assurance reports are 
shared and considered

• Multi agency case audits: evidence of good practice in safeguarding and early intervention or areas 
for improvement.  This may include large-scale audits focussed on specific parts of safeguarding 
processes 

• Capture information from parents and carers about their experience of the services they received 
through making better use of technology 

• External peer review – The partnership will explore commissioning of an external peer review of the 
arrangements from outside Leicestershire and Rutland on a thematic basis every three years

Gather
intelligence - 
How are 
we doing? Agree Key

focus areas

Determine
outcome
statements

Agree
business
plan

Implement
Plan actions

Assess 
impact
against
outcome
statements

Safeguarding
Assurance

Cycle

115



24  Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements

The Independent Advisor will play a role in the assurance framework as outlined in Appendix A.

Agree focus areas
The Safeguarding Partners have agreed there should be a focus on a small number of defined areas which 
the Partnership concludes are the most important. From the evaluation of the intelligence the Partnership will 
review the existing focus areas and agree those for the next period.

Determining Outcome Statements
For each of the focus areas the Partnership will determine outcome statements to clarify objectives and what 
good looks like. Work to review and agree partnership outcome statements will be undertaken each year as 
part of the assurance process.

Agree, implement and review impact of the Business Plan
The LRSCP will develop a Business Plan outlining its priorities for development and assurance.  The annual 
business plan reflects the actions needed to address the key focus areas and have measurable outcome 
statements. This will also include a plan to disseminate learning. The Business plan will be reviewed each 
year, and progress on outcomes and actions within the plan will be reviewed during the year.  

Forward planning
The Partnership will work to a rolling three-year ‘quality assurance timetable’ which will be updated annually in 
the business plan. 

There will be an annual evaluation of what practice improvements have been delivered through learning 
and development activities. The partnership will carry out a Training Needs Analysis each year to identify 
what training is required locally. This will be informed by partnership priorities, the evaluation of learning and 
development from the previous year, outcome of reviews and audits, and other local/national issues.  

116



Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements  25

Annual Report
The Safeguarding Partners will publish an Annual Report setting out what has been done by the Partnership, 
and the partners, to safeguard children and young people during the previous year and how effective the 
partnership arrangements have been.

This report will include information about:

• Agreed priorities

• Analysis of progress (or lack of progress) against priorities

• Decisions and actions taken by partners

• Feedback from children and young people and how this has been utilised to inform work and influence 
service provision

• Information on the delivery and impact of multi-agency safeguarding training

• Information on the learning and impact of any Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews

Any changes to the arrangements described in this document will be outlined in the Annual Report and 
reasons given for those changes.

The Annual Report will independently scrutinised and be endorsed by the LRSCP members.

It will be distributed across all relevant partners for dissemination throughout their organisations.

The LRSCP Annual Report will be published on the Partnership website and copies will be sent to the Child 
Safeguarding Practice Review Panel and the What Works Centre for Children’s Social Care within seven days of 
being published.

117



26  Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements

16. Data and information transfer
In accordance with Working Together 2018, arrangements are being made for handover of all relevant data 
and information held by the Leicestershire & Rutland Safeguarding Children Board to the Safeguarding 
Partners. 

In practice the data will continue to be managed by the Partnership Business Unit, currently hosted by 
Leicestershire County Council

Due consideration has been given to the Data Protection Act 2018, the General Data Protection Regulation 
and, the Freedom of Information Act and an audit trail is being produced of the information and data to be 
‘transferred’.

All pertinent historical records, including any that might be relevant to the Independent Inquiry into Child 
Sexual Abuse, will be retained.

17. Inter-agency training 
Working Together 2018 describes how:

Multi-agency training (is) important in supporting (a) collective understanding of local need ... To enable 
this, the three safeguarding partners should consider what training is needed locally and how they will 
monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of any training they commission.’

The Safeguarding Partnership will continue to carry out a Learning Needs Analysis each year to identify what 
multi-agency training is required locally.

The Learning Needs Analysis (LNA) will compiled with input from Partnership members, Sub-group Members, 
and from practitioners across Leicestershire and Rutland.

The LNA is also informed by Board priorities, the outcome of reviews (including Safeguarding Practice 
Reviews) and audits, and other issues as they come to light (whether locally or nationally). 

Training – both face-to-face and online – is commissioned based on this LNA for the year ahead with a margin 
of flexibility built in to address any emerging priorities and issues.   

Training is evaluated via participant feedback and via a longer-term impact survey for practitioners to 
understand how they have used what they learnt and the impact it has made.

Attendance figures and feedback is used to adjust, where necessary to the provision of multi-agency training. 

All the above is coordinated by the Multi-Agency Learning and Development Group, monitored by the LRSCP 
Planning and Delivery Group and reported to the Partnership.

118



Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements  27

18. Accessing Services and Help (Thresholds)
Working Together 2018 requires that the safeguarding partners publish a threshold document, which sets out 
the local criteria for action in a way that is transparent, accessible and easily understood and, as such, enables 
practitioners to identify the right support for the right child at the right time.

Children’s needs should be determined by a robust assessment which should inform the proportionate service 
response.  Clear thresholds and processes, together with a common understanding of them across local 
partners, will help to ensure that appropriate referrals for support are made. Such a common understanding 
can only continue to improve the effectiveness of joint work and lead to better outcomes for children and 
families.

The document is available online https://llrscb.proceduresonline.com/  and is used in multi-agency training.

The document contains added information about all safeguarding children themes, links to screening tools and 
links to local and national procedures, policies, guidelines and research. 

It is designed to promote informed decision making and evidenced based enquiries and referrals to First 
Response in Leicestershire and the Children’s Duty Team in Rutland. 

There is, in addition, extensive information on the safeguarding website about safeguarding concerns, issues 
and themes and how to make enquires and referrals regarding concerns about children across the spectrum 
from early help to statutory intervention.

Information with contact details for concerns about children is on all Partnership communications.

The use of the Threshold Document and the impact on the quality of safeguarding enquiries and referrals will 
be reviewed in 2020.

119



28  Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements

19. Child Death Review arrangements
The responsibility for ensuring child death reviews are carried out is held by ‘Child death review partners,’ who, 
in relation to a local authority area in England, are defined as the local authority for that area and any clinical 
commissioning groups operating in the local authority area. 

Child death review partners will publicise information on the arrangements for child death reviews in the area. 
This will include who the accountable officials are (the local authority chief executive and the accountable 
officer of the clinical commissioning group), which local authority and clinical commissioning group partners 
are involved, what geographical area is covered and who the designated doctor for child deaths is.

The child death review arrangements for Leicestershire and Rutland will be carried out by the Child Death 
Overview Panel (CDOP). The CDOP covers the geographical areas of Leicestershire and Rutland and Leicester 
City Councils, with learning enhanced by collaboration with other regional neighbours.

The new Safeguarding Children Partnership will maintain a link with the CDOP to enable reciprocal reporting of 
any safeguarding concerns. It has been agreed by the Child death review partners that CDOP will continue to 
provide reports on activity to each of the Safeguarding Partnerships and will publish an Annual Report.

The Chair of CDOP will attend the LRSCP meetings to provide this link. The CDOP is currently chaired by a 
Public Health consultant. 

The Child Death Review arrangements are published online at the following address (to be added).

120



Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements  29

20. Resolution of disputes
Working Together 2018 (pp 80) specifies that:  
 
“Safeguarding partners and relevant agencies must act in accordance with the arrangements for their area, 
and will be expected to work together to resolve any disputes locally.” 

The Independent advisor or other independent person will support the dispute resolution process. Where the 
statutory partners cannot come to a unanimous agreement then the advice of the independent advisor should 
be sought and in coming to a final decision, the response to that advice should be transparent. Each statutory 
partner retains their own access to legal advice.

The Partnership’s Resolution of Disputes process will be clearly outlined on the Partnership’s website and in 
separate guidance.

The guidance willl outline principles and processes and when, and at what stage, concerns should 
be escalated to the safeguarding Partnership, including the referral of cases for consideration for Child 
Safeguarding Practice Review.

Partners are reminded regularly face-to-face and in communications, that this process exists and where to find 
guidance. 

Useful links
How to raise a concern about a child: 

http://lrsb.org.uk/childreport

Working Together 2018 guidance:   
www.gov.uk/government/publications/working-together-to-safeguard-children--2

Keeping Children Safe in Education guidance:

www.gov.uk/government/publications/keeping-children-safe-in-education--2

121



30  Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements

Endorsement of the safeguarding arrangements
The lead representatives from the safeguarding partners responsible for the safeguarding arrangements set out 
under the Leicestershire Safeguarding Children Partnership have endorsed the arrangements.

John Sinnott

Chief Executive 
Leicestershire County Council  
 
 
 

Donna Enoux

Deputy Accountable Officer 
East Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical 
Commissioning Groups 
 
 
 
 

Simon Cole

Chief Constable 
Leicestershire Police

Helen Briggs

Chief Executive 
Rutland County Council 
 
 
 

Caroline Trevithick

Accountable Officer (interim) 
West Leicestershire Clinical Commissioning Group 

  
 

122



Local Multi-Agency Safeguarding Partnership Arrangements  31

The Role of Independent Advisor
The Independent Advisor for Leicestershire & Rutland Safeguarding Children Partnership will support 
and advise the safeguarding partners to ensure the multi-agency arrangements are effective in 
safeguarding and promote the welfare of all children.

The Independent Advisor will independently chair the Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding 
Children Partnership.

Through chairing the main Partnership meetings the Independent Advisor will have oversight of the 
outcomes of the assurance process.

The Independent Advisor will scrutinise and verify the assurance work and the Annual Report of the 
Partnership.

The Independent Advisor will make decisions as to whether serious incident cases referred to the 
Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel or cases referred to the Case Review Group meet the 
criteria for a local child safeguarding practice review, based upon the information provided by the 
Case Review Group.  The Advisor will identify on what grounds a review should be carried out and 
will notify the Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel of these decisions. The Advisor will have 
regard to any guidance which the Panel publishes.

The Independent Advisor will participate in an annual safeguarding learning and development 
event for safeguarding partners and scrutinise the outcomes from the evaluation of the intelligence 
gathering to inform the refresh of focus areas. This will also assist with promoting transparency.

The Independent Advisor where appropriate will support the dispute resolution process, providing 
advice where the Partnership members cannot come to a unanimous agreement.

In addition to the principles, aims and objectives of the Partnership outlined in the safeguarding 
arrangements document the key considerations of the Independent Advisor in their scrutiny will be:

• How effectively the voices of children and young people are listened to and acted upon. 

• How the arrangements are working for children and families, as well as for practitioners, and 

• How well the safeguarding partners are providing effective leadership.

Appendix A  

123



T0
27

1

124



 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 11 JULY 2019 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES, 

LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

COUNTY LINES AND CHILD CRIMINAL EXPLOITATION 
 
 
Purpose of report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to provide the Board with an overview of child 

criminal exploitation (CCE) within the County, including county lines. 
 

Link to the local Health and Care System 
 
 

2. The Vulnerability Executive, a sub group of the Strategic Partnership Board, 
provides the strategic leadership and governance for the work on county lines 
and child criminal exploitation.  

 
Recommendation 
 
3. It is recommended that the Health and Wellbeing Board notes the contents of 

the report. 
 
Background 
 
County Lines 
 
4. The term County Lines is a term used to describe situations where young 

people may be internally trafficked for the purposes of criminal exploitation.  
The current County Lines criminal business model thrives on the exploitation of 
vulnerable adults and children to move, hold, package and deliver drugs. This 
enables perpetrators to maximise their profits and reduce the risk of links to 
criminal activity as it distances them from the supply and distribution 
transactions.   

 
5. There is a correlation between missing children and criminal activity, it is 

believed that children are being used as runners, cutting and bagging drugs, 
collecting debts and cuckooing premises (a crime in which drug dealers take 
over the home of a vulnerable person in order to use it as a base for drug 
dealing).  Criminal exploitation interlinks with a number of multiple 
vulnerabilities and offences including exposure to physical and emotional 
violence; neglect and sexual abuse.  

 
6. Drug users looking to buy drugs place orders by ringing a County Line number 

which is distributed via word of mouth, social media advertising and business 
cards. High level Serious Organised Crime Groups (SOC) hold the “County 

125 Agenda Item 13



Line “ number taking orders, promoting deals and under cutting other local 
dealers.  

 
7. Young children are regarded as “clean skins” as they often have yet to come to 

the attention of the courts, receive lesser sentences and are easier to groom, 
isolate, manipulate and encourage into debt bondage (where a person's services 

are used as security for the repayment for a debt)The sense of belonging and 
“family” is used to manipulate the children. 

 
8. The indicators and vulnerabilities in respect of criminal exploitation are not 

dissimilar to the identification of the signs of Child Sexual Exploitation.  Missing 
from home, arrested in possession of drugs, carrying a weapon, unexplained 
injuries, and additional phones, found in a “Cuckooed” address, family conflict 
and not in education.   

 
9. In a report published earlier in the year, Keeping Kids Safe: improving 

safeguarding responses to gang violence and criminal exploitation, the 
Children’s Commissioner warned ‘of an epidemic of drug gangs being 
responsible for a child protection crisis; not dissimilar to the grooming scandals 
that have blighted many towns and Cities. In every area of the Country 
vulnerable children are being recruited into county lines activity. This is a 
national priority, many local authorities unaware of the scale and number of 
children affected.” 

 
10. According to the National Crime Agency there are 5,866 mapped Serious and 

Organised Crime (SOC) groups in the UK; with an estimated membership of 
39,414 young individuals.  

 
11. The use of violence including sexual violence isn’t uncommon. The most 

vulnerable children will be targeted who have often suffered trauma early in life; 
many being victims themselves, or witnessing domestic abuse, older siblings or 
parent’s being actively involved or associated by debt bondage to Organised 
Crime Groups.   

 
12. Potentially a child involved with serious youth violence could be both a victim 

and a perpetrator. This requires professionals to assess and support his/her 
welfare and wellbeing needs at the same time as assessing and responding in 
both a safeguarding and criminal justice capacity.  

 
13. The impact of CCE is devastating leaving families isolated, unable to protect 

their child and in fear of reprisal. Implications for mental health are profound, 
anxiety disorders, antisocial personality disorder; self-harm including suicide 
attempts are not uncommon.  

 
Leicestershire 
 
14. There are currently five confirmed county lines which are either active or have 

been active in the past six months in Leicestershire. Two further lines have 
recently been identified linked to London. County lines work in both directions 

126



with drugs coming into and leaving the LLR area with confirmed links to West 
Midlands, Northamptonshire, Warwickshire and London. 

 
15. Nationally, methods of transportation vary, however the rail network and hire 

cars are extensively used. In Leicestershire the market towns of Loughborough, 
Hinckley, Market Harborough and Coalville have been affected. The true scale 
of criminal exploitation in LLR is not yet known. 

 
16. The analysis of Leicestershire data shows that boys are reported missing more 

frequently than girls, the most prevalent age for both is 12-15 years. The three 
boys this quarter who are reported as the Counties most frequent mispers are 
all believed to be involved in County Line activity. Multi agency working is a 
priority to develop local national picture around drug supply, current trends and 
criminality. 

 
Leicestershire’s Response 
 
17. Leicestershire Children and Family Services have worked well with partners to 

raise the profile of and tackle CSE and Missing. Exploitation of children is now 
being recognised in a wider context; whilst not losing sight of children who are 
going missing and being sexually exploited. CSE is now seen through a 
broader understanding of child exploitation, encompassing criminal exploitation, 
trafficking, modern slavery and other forms of adolescent vulnerability.   

 
18. In Leicestershire, the Authority strives to continuously improve its response; 

understanding contextual safeguarding issues that mean there are child 
protection concerns from beyond the family. This is increased for adolescents 
who are influenced by their peers. Therefore, understanding and reducing the 
risk of harm outside the family home is imperative. 

 
19. Operation Lionheart commenced on 9th April which culminated in three weeks 

of intensive police activity. 124 warrants were executed with 87 people 
arrested, 82 of which  were charged . 15 vulnerable adults were identified and 
15 vulnerable children were found to be engaged in some form of criminal 
activity. 

 
20. Children and Family Services have recruited to a second Service Manager post 

in First Response with a portfolio that includes operational responsibility for 
CCE, CSE, Missing and consolidates this with a successful domestic abuse 
pilot co-located within the CSE hub at Wigston Police Station. Responsibility for 
the Out of Hours service is also included and has recently successfully co-
located to the hub at Wigston. This will offer the additional resource of a 
dedicated phone line to respond to missing children.  The post will strengthen 
an integrated front door and partnership approach to CCE across 
Leicestershire. 

 
21. This will embed an integrated approach to all forms of child exploitation, led by 

the First Response Service providing an effective response to all forms of 
criminal exploitation including youth violence, exposure to drug activity and 
sexual abuse.  

127



 
22. The Service’s staff and partners have received training in identification of CCE, 

and the “Gang association Tool” has been introduced; the county continue to 
receive a consistently higher proportion of referrals compared to the city.  Work 
has also taken place to raise awareness with schools, GPs and the community 
safety partnerships.  A key issue locally is ensuring that partners and 
professionals are able to spot the signs of criminal exploitation and to support 
the identification of vulnerable young people. 

 
23. Regionally Leicestershire are leaders in the development of a regional 

response to tackle CCE and develop improved information sharing across 
borders. A CCE pathway to services and resources is currently being 
developed. 

  
24. The CSE hub works closely with both specialist detectives within the hub, 

neighbourhood police teams and the force intelligence bureau.  There are a 
number of criminal investigations underway, and as a key partner agency we 
are sharing information working alongside the police to develop intelligence, 
association mappings, risk assessments and safety plans for children who are 
involved in this activity.  

 
25. The monthly strategic partnership CSE Meetings also creates an opportunity for 

the police to share information around enforcement; social care can then 
develop a partnership response to targeted intervention and support any 
victims or witnesses that may be involved. 

 
26. County Lines is identified as one of three priority vulnerabilities in the Serious 

and Organised Crime Profile assessed a high priority. The recommendations in 
the profile for county lines are:- 

 Examine the correlation between repeat missing children, looked after 
children, those excluded from school and being criminally exploited in 
county lines markets 

 Raise awareness across all public sector agencies regarding the signs of 
criminal exploitation in people involved in county lines 

 Raise awareness with the wider public in LLR of the signs of criminal 
exploitation of people involved in county lines 

 Ensure criminal exploitation is recognised as a vulnerability in young 
people which is an equivalent risk as other neglect and abuse. 

 
27. The work on county lines is governed through the Vulnerability Executive that 

reports to the Strategic Partnership Board. 
 
 
 
Background papers 
 
Keeping Kids Safe: improving safeguarding responses to gang violence and criminal 
exploitation 
https://www.childrenscommissioner.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/02/CCO-Gangs.pdf 

 

128

https://www.childrenscommissioner.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/02/CCO-Gangs.pdf


 
 
 
Officer to contact 
 
Sharon Cooke 
Assistant Director, Children and Family Services 
sharon.cooke@leics.gov.uk  
0116 305 5479 
 
Donna Smalley 
Service manager CSE and Missing Multi-Agency Team 
Donna.smalley@leics.gov.uk 
0116 305 6631 
 
 
Relevant Impact Assessments 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
The children and young people involved with County Lines and Criminal Exploitation 
are highly vulnerable, therefore every effort needs to be made to identify these 
vulnerabilities and ensure support is provided to reduce and mitigate the risk. 
 
 
  
 
 
  

129

mailto:sharon.cooke@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Donna.smalley@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 11 JULY 2019 
 

REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF HEALTH AND CARE INTEGRATION  
 

ACTIONS ARISING FROM THE AGREED OUTCOMES OF THE HEALTH 
AND WELLBEING BOARD DEVELOPMENT SESSION HELD ON 30 

NOVEMBER 2018 
 
Purpose of report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to provide the Health and Wellbeing Board with an 

action log detailing the agreed areas of focus following the Health and Wellbeing 
Board workshop on mental health and commissioning intentions held on 30 
November 2018. 

  
Link to the local Health and Care System 
 
2. One of the priorities in the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy is that people give 

equal priority to their mental health and wellbeing and can access the right support 
through their life course.  Delivering the identified actions relating to mental health will 
support the Board to meet this priority. 

 
Recommendation 
 
3. The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to: 
 

(a) Note the action log and the progress made; 
 
(b) Agree the proposed approach and strategy of the Leicestershire Mental Health 

Self-Care Campaign; 
 
(c) Agree that the Leicestershire Mental Health Self-Care Campaign becomes a 

workstream of the Unified Prevention Board; 
 

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions 
 
4. Following the Health and Wellbeing Board development session in November, a 

report was considered by the Health and Wellbeing Board on 24 January which 
provided a summary of the workshop discussion and a list of proposed 
recommendations/actions, which the Board subsequently agreed. A further report 
was considered on 14 March which set out details of the initial progress that had 
been made. 

 
Background 
 
5. On the 30th November 2018, members of the Health and Wellbeing Board took part 

in a development session which focused on the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
(JSNA) and commissioning intentions for 2019/20. 

131 Agenda Item 14



2 
 

 
6. In the first part of the development session, attendees received a detailed 

presentation on the needs analysis relating to Mental Health, one of the first sections 
of the Leicestershire JSNA to be updated in the new style of rolling chapter updates. 
Part two of the session provided participants with an overview of commissioning 
intentions of each partner agency for the forthcoming financial year. 

 
7. Arising from discussion during the development session, a number of action 

points/recommendations were agreed which were later summarised and presented to 
the Health and Wellbeing Board at its meeting on the 24 January 2019. Following 
their consideration and approval, an action plan was developed which summarises 
each of the agreed actions, identifies the officer/s responsible for the action and 
details progress made in relation to the completion of the actions. A copy of the 
action plan is attached as an appendix.    

 
8. The action log splits the agreed actions into a number of topic areas to reflect the 

varied areas of focus. Those topic areas include ‘Parity of Esteem and the Mental 
Health Investment Standard’, ‘Improving Access to, and the Outcomes from, 
Psychological Therapies’ and ‘Commissioning Intentions for 2019/20 Across the 
Partnership’. 

 
Progressing the actions 

 
9. Where possible, a brief progress update on the agreed actions has been included 

within the attached action log. Progress where the update is more detailed is set out 
in paragraphs 11 – 24 below.  It should also be noted that some of the actions have 
already resulted in reports being presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board, such 
as the update on the Strategic Growth Plan which was considered by the Board in 
March, whilst reports on matters including the future commissioning intentions for the 
Improving Access to Physical Therapies programme and an overview of recent 
housing developments across Leicestershire will be considered later in 2019. Other 
actions have/will be completed outside of the meeting process. 
 

10. The action log will continue to be regularly presented to the Board in order for its 
progress to be continuously monitored.  

 
Re-Structure of the LLR Mental Health Partnership Board  

 
11. Earlier this year, the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR) Sustainability and 

Transformation Partnership (STP) Mental Health Programmes Delivery Board 
superseded the LLR Mental Health Partnership Board. Its remit includes: 
 
a) Providing strategic direction on the implementation of the mental health priorities 

identified in local STP plans, in the Five Year Forward View and NHS Long Term 
Plan across LLR. 
 

b) Agreeing priorities with the following work programmes and receive highlight 
reports on progress: 

 
 Mental Health and Wellbeing: Prevention  
 Integrating community based Physical and Mental Healthcare  
 Mental Health Crisis, Admission and Flow 

132



3 
 

 Adult Mental Health Complex Care and rehabilitation pathway 
 Leicestershire Partnership Trust All Age Transformation Programme - existing 

programme 
 Children and Young People’s Emotional Health and Wellbeing (Futures in 

Mind) - existing programme. 
 

c) Reviewing strategic priorities taking into account reports from independent 
regulator (e.g. Care Quality Commission) and other key bodies. 
 

d) Seeking assurance that each work programme is able to evidence 
communication, engagement and where required consultation and demonstrate 
impact on changes being made. 

 
e) Being a partner wide body considering mental health investment /disinvestment 

plans and the impact on system strategic priorities.  
 
12. Membership includes the key local partners whose remit involves improving the 

mental health of local residents. This encompasses representatives from the 
statutory and voluntary sectors, both from commissioning and provider organisations. 
 

13. The Board reports directly to the LLR STP Senior Leadership Team and will also take 
6 monthly reports to each of the LLR Health and Wellbeing Boards. 

 
14. One of the Boards key sub-groups/initiatives is ‘Mental Health and Wellbeing-

Prevention’: 
 

15. This subgroup is supporting the Leicestershire mental health self-care campaign 
outlined in paragraphs 19 – 24 below, which is planned for launch in August, 2019.  

 
16. It will be important to ensure that partners across the system are fully engaged with 

the campaign and prior to its launch we will be working to recruit ‘champions’ from 
the Leicestershire Health and Wellbeing Board and the LLR Mental Health 
Programme Delivery Board to support and drive this important programme.” 

 
Mental Health Self-Care Communications Campaign 

 
17. The Health and Wellbeing Board has a statutory duty to communicate and engage 

with the public, particularly in respect to the outcomes prioritised within the local Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  In delivering the Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy, one of the communications objectives is to inform and engage with local 
people about taking responsibility for their own health and wellbeing and achieve the 
best possible quality of life. 
 

18. At the November 2018 Development Session, the Board identified the need for a 
more focused communications and engagement campaign relating to mental health 
self-care. 

 
19. Self-care covers many areas, but overall it is about an individual looking after 

themselves in a healthy way. It can include getting people to live healthier lives by 
quitting smoking, drinking sensibly or exercising more. The term is also used to cover 
taking medications, treating minor ailments and knowing when and how best to seek 

133



4 
 

help.  In addition to supporting the wellbeing of individuals and communities, self-
care helps to reduce the demand on healthcare resources across Leicestershire. 

 
20. The proposed objectives for the Leicestershire mental health self-care 

communications campaign are: 
 

(i) To drive support and participation in self-care and self-care promotion amongst 
target audiences, as well as partners and stakeholders. 

 
(ii) To encourage behaviour change through self-care actions, and increase 

awareness and understanding of healthcare navigation – reducing the impact on 
resources at a local and regional level. 

 
(iii) To re-enforce national and local messages that focus on self-care themes 

throughout the calendar year. 
 

21. The campaign has been developed with input from key partners and a staff focus 
group and is centred around the ‘5 Ways to Wellbeing’: 

 Connect 

 Be Active 

 Take Notice 

 Keep Learning 

 Give 

 
 
22. The graphics will be simple, thought provoking messages aimed at encouraging 

people to take steps to enhance wellbeing. Campaign materials will direct people to 
www.healthandcareleicestershire.co.uk which will highlight and signpost people to a 
range of ideas and suggestions for people to enhance their wellbeing, such as 
volunteering and adult learning courses. 

 
 

134

http://www.healthandcareleicestershire.co.uk/


5 
 

 
23. The wider communications strategy will focus on four key areas: 

 Mental health – we will highlight the five ways to wellbeing, signposting to local 
groups and information to support behaviour change 

 Healthy living – including staying active, healthy eating, stopping smoking 

 Self-care options – awareness of local healthcare services – pharmacy, GP, 
walk-in centres, NHS choices and First Contact Plus. 

 Long term conditions – managing health conditions such as asthma and 
diabetes 

 
24. A range of communications tools will be used to deliver messages in a timely way. 

Audiences will be reached via established networks where possible, and 
communications messages will be mapped and planned as much as possible to 
avoid duplication or inconsistency of messages with other areas. 

 
Resource Implications 

 
25. Staffing resource will be required to design and deliver the communications. This will 

be managed and delivered from existing resource through the Unified Prevention 
Board. Partners also working to support and share the promotion of self-care locally 
include: 

 East Leicestershire & Rutland CCG 

 West Leicestershire CCG 

 District and Borough Councils 

 Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust (LPT) 

 East Midlands Ambulances Services (EMAS) 

 University Hospitals of Leicester (UHL) 
 
Background papers 
 
Report to the Health and Wellbeing Board – Thursday 24 January 2019 – Outcomes from 
the Health and Wellbeing Board Development Session held on 30 November 2018 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1038&MId=5738&Ver=4 
 
Report to the Health and Wellbeing Board – Thursday 14 March 2019 - Action log arising 
from the agreed outcomes of the Health and Wellbeing Board Development Session held 
on 30 November 2018 
 

135

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1038&MId=5738&Ver=4


6 
 

Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 
 
None.  
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Cheryl Davenport 
Director of Health and Care Integration (Joint Appointment) 
0116 305 4212 
Cheryl.Davenport@leics.gov.uk  
 
Lorna Dellow 
Senior Communications Officer 
Leicestershire County Council 
0116 305 8113 
Lorna.dellow@leics.gov.uk 
 
List of Appendices 
 
Health and Wellbeing Board Development Session Action Log 
 
Relevant Impact Assessments 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
The work being undertaken to deliver against the actions identified within the action plan 
will have a positive impact on the health of the Leicestershire population.  
 

136

mailto:Cheryl.Davenport@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Lorna.dellow@leics.gov.uk


Health and Wellbeing Board Development Session:  
30 November 2018 - Action Log 

 

Topic Area Action Responsible 
Officer 

Comments 

 
 
Parity of Esteem and the Mental 
Health (MH) Investment Standard. 

 

That the HWB Board receives a report on the MH 

standards and local investment plans from 

2019/20 onwards demonstrating how the 

investment Leicestershire is receiving from the 

national allocation will deliver against the national 

requirements, and how its prioritisation responds 

to the evidence presented in the JSNA.  Report to 

include investment in services across all ages 

(including children and young people), use 

benchmarking information comparing 

service/investment levels and outcomes in 

Leicestershire with other peer counties, and show 

the relative proportions being invested in 

prevention, crisis support, community services 

and secondary care. 

 
 
Mike McHugh/Sarah 
Warmington 

 

Report to be considered by the Board 

in September.  

 

 

Prevention and Self Care 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

That the Unified Prevention Board be asked to 

work with District/Borough Health Leads to 

consider and address the reasons for the 

variability in the prominence of promoting mental 

health and wellbeing across Leicestershire, to 

strengthen this within the existing social 

prescribing developments 

 
 
Jane Toman and Mike 
Sandys 

 
 
This is being considered by the next 
meeting of the district health leads.  
The Unified Prevention Board is also 
considering the action plan of the 
Health and Wellbeing Board 
development session at its meeting 
on the 12th March. 

137



Topic Area Action Responsible 
Officer 

Comments 

 
Prevention and Self Care 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

That consideration be given to designating a 

number of Mental Health Champions, and 

consider whether the Board is supported 

sufficiently in terms of mental health expertise in 

order to drive this campaign. 

 

 
 
Mrs Posnett CC and 
Mike McHugh 

 

Updated as part of the re-Structure of 

the LLR Mental Health Partnership 

Board (a subgroup of STP) and 

consideration of the role of Mental 

Health Champions in the system 

overall. 

 

 

That the Health and Wellbeing Board’s 

communication and engagement plan for 2019/20 

should focus heavily on promoting mental health 

and wellbeing.  

 

 
 
Lorna Dellow 

 

Initial conversations and planning 

around the campaign are in progress 

and will be discussed as part of the 

standing item of joined up 

communications planning, at the next 

Unified Prevention Board on 12 

March.   Following this meeting, next 

steps for the campaign will be 

established, enabling the 

communications plan and campaign 

material to be developed, which will 

then come to a future Health and 

Wellbeing Board for comments and 

feedback. 

 

 

 

138



Topic Area Action Responsible 
Officer 

Comments 

 
 
Prevention and Self Care 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

That the Unified Prevention Board and the Mental 

Health Partnership be engaged actively in 

developing the content and approach to the 

campaign. 

 

 
 
Lorna Dellow/Lisa Carter 

 
 
Update to be considered by the 
Health and Wellbeing Board in July 

 

That the existing, well established, joint 

arrangements across communications teams in 

the partnership organisations covering LLR 

should be used to collaborate on the content and 

dissemination of the campaign, across all 

channels/ organisations/ 

populations/communities.  

 

 
 
Lorna Dellow 

 
 
Update to be considered by the 
Health and Wellbeing Board in July 

 

That the HWB Board receives the proposed 

campaign materials for discussion and approval 

prior to the launch.  

 

 
 
Lorna Dellow 

 
 
Update  to be considered by the 
Health and Wellbeing Board in July 

 

That the Children’s Partnership be asked to 

develop an approach to ACEs and bring a report 

on this to a future HWB board meeting. 

 

 
 
Mala Razak/Jane Moore 

 

A report was considered by the 

Children and Families Partnership in 

June and an update be provided to a 

future H&W Board 

139



Topic Area Action Responsible 
Officer 

Comments 

 

Improving Access to, and the 

Outcomes from, Psychological 

Therapies (IAPT) 

 

 

That Clinicians be encouraged to raise the issue 

of Mental Health and Wellbeing at the point of 

diagnosis, for example at the point of an initial 

diagnosis for a Long Term Condition, as this 

presents a key opportunity to intervene early and 

signpost to available support.  

 

 

Prof Mayur Lakhani and Dr 

Andy Ker 

 

 

Already in place – part of the holistic 

assessment of patients with LTC and 

Frailty (QOF and QIPP standard). 

 

That as part of the Board's consideration of 

overall outpatient redesign activities, it consider 

how the approach could be more systematical 

across other settings such as outpatient clinics 

 

 
 
Mark Wightman 

 

Designing a more ‘systematic’ 

(standardised) approach to 

Outpatients is central to the OPs 

improvement work. The current OP 

model has evolved over the last 70+ 

years part by design and part by 

individual custom and practice in 

each of our many and distinct 

services. The approach we are taking 

is to redesign by key services (ENT / 

Dermatology / Cardiology etc), 

anticipating that as we gather 

momentum we learn and increase 

pace. 

 

 

140



Topic Area Action Responsible 
Officer 

Comments 

 

Improving Access to, and the 

Outcomes from, Psychological 

Therapies (IAPT) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

That Locality teams be asked to ensure all 

members of the multidisciplinary team (including 

care coordinators/navigators/Local Area 

Coordinators) have adequate skills in discussing 

mental wellbeing (making every contact count) 

and a good working knowledge of  

 The likely impact of frailty and multi 

morbidity on MH health and wellbeing 

 The MH wellbeing and support offer 

available in Leicestershire. 

 

 

Louise Young 

Following Recommendations made to 

LLR Integrated communities board, as 

part of a developing LLR implementation 

plan: 

1. for a review of primary 

care/community mental health 

provision across  LLR to ensure primary 

care mental health works are part of the 

integrated neighbourhood teams. 

2.People awaiting their first IAPT 

appointment will be reviewed and 

offered local mental health and well-

being services (e.g. Mental Health 

Matters) where appropriate 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

141



Topic Area Action Responsible 
Officer 

Comments 

 
 
 
 

 

That the outcomes framework for measuring the 

impact of locality teams should include evaluating  

 How the team has actively signposted 

and supported people to the IAPT offer, 

and other mental wellbeing activities/low 

level support in community settings 

 Whether taking a more targeted approach 

via the ILTs increases the number of 

IAPT referrals for older people. 

 Evidence, in MDT case conferencing and 

documented care plans, that MH and  

 Wellbeing is routinely being raised and 

addressed as part of holistic 

assessments and interventions. 

  In the patient evaluation element of the 

framework, assessing the impact of ILT 

interventions on patient reported 

outcomes for mental health and wellbeing 

 

 

 

 
 
Louise Young 

Outcomes framework drafted and to be 

further developed as part of the 

neighbourhood teams implementation 

plan  - specific outcomes and process 

measures will include these elements. 

142



Topic Area Action Responsible 
Officer 

Comments 

 

That the Health and Wellbeing Board  receive a 

report on the future commissioning intentions for 

IAPT during 2019, and be actively engaged in the 

preparatory work for the re-procurement 

 

 
 
Sarah Warmington  

There is ongoing Public Health 

representation within the IAPT re-

procurement project. A report 

providing a Procurement update will 

be presented to the Board in 

September. 

 

 

Measuring the Impact and 

Effectiveness of Mental Health 

Interventions 

 

 

That once the new integrated data warehouse 

and reporting tool is up and running, it should be 

used to prioritise the development of dashboards 

that assist in measuring the impact of various 

interventions, including MH. 

 
 
Cheryl Davenport  

 

Will co-design integrated data 

dashboards with the STP Mental Health 

Partnership Board during 2019/20 

 

Other commissioning Intentions 

for 2019/20 Across the Partnership 

 

 

 

 

 

 

That the HWB Board receives a presentation on 

the strategic growth plan, early in 2019. 

 

 

 
 
Tom Purnell  

 

A Presentation was provided to the 

Health and Wellbeing Board in March 

 

 

That the HWB Board receive (in Q2 2019) a 

comprehensive report on the housing 

developments across Leicestershire over the 10 

 
 
Tom Purnell 

 

A presentation will be provided to the 

Health and Wellbeing Board in 

September 

143



Topic Area Action Responsible 
Officer 

Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Other commissioning Intentions 

for 2019/20 Across the Partnership 

 

 

 

 

 

 

years,  

 

That a stock take of work in progress relating to 

community and social cohesion across partners 

be undertaken, and subject to the outcome of 

this,  a multiagency workshop on this topic be 

arranged during 2019/20 with a view to 

consolidating the strategy and setting a clearer 

joint strategic direction/set of commissioning 

intentions. 

 

 

 

 
 
Mike Sandys 

 

To be taken forward as part of the 

Loneliness Project within LCC. 

 

That the Leicestershire Resilience Forum be 

asked to review the Brexit preparations and risk 

register entries associated with this, across 

partner agencies in Q4 2018/19 and provide 

advice to the HWB Board and individual 

organisations, as needed. 

 

 
 
Zafar Saleem  

Multi-agency arrangements for 

command, control & communication 

have been established. Several 

workshops have been held, risk 

assessments undertaken and 

business continuity plans put in 

place. Regular dialogue is ongoing 

with MHCLG & its specialist 

Resilience & Emergency 

Department. The main risk areas are 

disruption at East Midlands Airport as 

it is a major freight port, & highways 

infrastructure issues. There are 

144



Topic Area Action Responsible 
Officer 

Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

additional risks to food & medicine 

supplies, potential cohesion issues, & 

workforce availability with 

consequential impact on sectors 

reliant on EU labour (distribution, 

care sector, HNS food processing, 

and hospitality). All partner agencies 

will have received national guidance 

from Central Government on 

preparedness & to support this a 

small amount of additional funding 

has been provided to the LRF & all 

unitary, district & county councils. 

24/7 and additional cover 

arrangements have been put in place 

for Brexit weekend with strategic & 

tactical coordinating groups. 

 

Other commissioning Intentions 

for 2019/20 Across the Partnership 

 

 

That the LLR Better Care Together senior 

leadership team be asked to consider if the 

workforce programme across LLR should be 

revitalised and greater engagement made with 

the 3 HWB Boards on this topic as well as the 

medium term system level financial plan for LLR 

(the latter should be timed in relation to local 

analysis of the requirements of the new NHS 10 

year plan). 

 
 
Peter Miller 

 

 

145



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 11 JULY 2019 

 
REPORT OF HEALTHWATCH LEICESTERSHIRE 

 
ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 

 
Purpose of report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to present Healthwatch Leicestershire’s Annual Report for 
2018/19 which provides a summary of the activity it has undertaken in its first contract year 
as a jointly commissioned contract with Healthwatch Leicester.  

 
Policy Framework and Previous Decisions 

 
2. The County Council, following the Health and Social Care Act 2012, is required to 

directly commission a local Healthwatch. The local Healthwatch in turn has a set of 
statutory activities to undertake, such as gathering local views and making these known 
to providers and commissioners, monitoring and scrutinising the quality of provision of 
local services and a seat on the Health and Wellbeing Board.  

 
Recommendation 
 

3. It is recommended that Healthwatch Leicestershire’s Annual Review 2018 -19 be noted. 
 
Background 
 

4. The purpose of HWL is to promote improvements in local health and social care services 
– improving outcomes for local people in Leicestershire. HWL believes that the best way 
to do this is by designing local services around the needs and experiences of local 
people.  

 
5. The Annual Report contains details on the statutory activities undertaken over the last 

year and demonstrates the impact that these activities have made on the commissioning, 
provision and management of local health and social care services. 
 

6. The report gives examples of the work done with statutory partners and illustrates how 
Healthwatch has worked to support the public in accessing information about Health and 
Social Care services.  

 
 
Officer to Contact 
 
Micheal Smith - Manager 
0116 2518313 
Micheal.Smith@healthwatchll.com  
 

147 Agenda Item 15



 

List of Appendices 
 
Healthwatch Leicestershire’s Annual Review 2018-19 
 
Relevant Impact Assessments 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 

7. HWL is aware that the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) applies to all functions of 
public authorities that are listed in Schedule 19 Equality Act 2010. Schedule 19 list does 
not include Healthwatch England or Local Healthwatch organisations, however as bodies 
carrying out a public function using public funding we are subject to the PSED general 
duty. 

 
8. ECS/ Healthwatch Leicestershire is committed to reducing the inequalities of health and 

social care outcomes experienced in some communities.  We believe also that health 
and social care should be based on a human rights platform.  We will utilise the Equality 
Act 2010 when carrying out our work and in influencing change in service commissioning 
and delivery.  

 
 
 

 
 

148



Annual Report 2018-19

Healthwatch Leicester and 
Leicestershire

149



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire

Contents
Message from our Chair  1

About us  3

Highlights of the year  5

How we’ve made a difference  7

Helping you find the answers  11

Our volunteers  15

Our finances  19

Our plans for next year  21

Thank you  23

Contact us  24

150



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 1

I am delighted to be presenting my first 
Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire report.  
Patient voice has always been important to me. I 
started my journey 10 years ago when I was 
elected as Chair of my local Patient Participation 
Group (PPG).  Since then I have been involved in 
numerous projects to ensure that the patient’s 
perspective is counted when decisions are made 
about health provision in the City. 

Being Chair of Healthwatch Leicester and 
Leicestershire has given me the opportunity to 
champion the service user’s voice in social care as 
well as the NHS, with a wider reach in the county.  
Leicestershire is very diverse, and the patient’s 
needs vary from area to area.

Acting in the role of Chair of not one but two 
Healthwatches has been an interesting challenge 
this year due to trying to ensure we have a 
meaningful relationship across two councils (of 
different political groups) and three Clinical 
commissioning groups. This has been both a 
blessing and a curse. We are able to represent 
patients with a stronger and clearer voice across 
Leicester City and Leicestershire County, but we 
also need to make sure we are engaging with the 
different communities across our patch. 

In Healthwatch, our staff and board members have 
worked hard to maintain the relationships with 
key partners, from the previous contracts, and to 
ensure we are where we need to be as the Health 
and Care landscape has changed around us. 

We have worked closely with our Healthwatch 
Rutland colleagues even if we have not always 
approached a situation from the same direction. 

Through 2018-19 I feel we have challenged the 
Health and Care system when it was appropriate, 
and we have also looked to find opportunities to 
inform and educate members of the public on how 
to engage with services more effectively. 

This year is likely to see as such change in how 
services are delivered, and we will continue to 
champion patients and the public are involved in 
changes and kept informed on how changes will 
affect them. 

Our priorities for the next 12 months are; 

 » Medicines Management – Relationship 
between GP’s, Hospitals and Patients

 » Personal Budgets

 » Social Prescribing

 » Access to Secondary Mental Health Care

 » Supported Living services

 » Lifestyle services

Message from our Chair

Harsha Kotecha 

Chair, Healthwatch Advisory Board

151



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 2

Changes you want to see
 
Last year we heard from 483 people who told us about their experience of a 
number of different areas of health and social care. Here are some examples 
of the changes that you want to see.

 + Healthcare professionals should have a 
positive attitude and be empathetic

 + Services should provide information so that 
people can make informed decisions about 
their care

 + Make it easier to see a doctor or nurse quickly

 + Staff should take the time to speak to people 
about what to expect next

152



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 3

As Chair of Healthwatch England, it’s my role to make sure your 
Healthwatch gets effective support and that national decisions 
are informed by what people are saying all over England.

If you were one of the 400,000 people who shared their 
experiences with us last year, I want to say a personal thank 
you. Without your views, Healthwatch wouldn’t be able to 
make a difference to health and social care services, both in 
your area and at a national level. One example of this is how we 
shared 85,000 views with the NHS, to highlight what matters 
most, and help shape its plans for the next decade.

If you’re part of an organisation that’s worked with, supported 
or responded to Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire, 
thank you too. You’ve helped to make an even bigger difference.

None of this could have been possible without our dedicated 
staff and volunteers, who work in the community every day to 
understand what is working and what could be better when it 
comes to people’s health and care.

If you’ve shared your views with us then please keep doing 
what you’re doing. If you haven’t, then this is your chance to 
step forward and help us make care better for your community. 
We all have a stake in our NHS and social care services: we can 
all really make a difference in this way.

About us

Sir Robert Francis QC 
Healthwatch England Chair

Healthwatch is here to make care better

We are the independent champion for people using local health and social care 
services. We listen to what people like about services and what could be 
improved. We share their views with those with the power to make change 
happen. People can also speak to us to find information about health and social 
care services available locally.  

Our sole purpose is to help make care better for people.

153



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 4

Our vision is simple

Health and care that works for you. People want health and social care support 
that works – helping them to stay well, get the best out of services and manage 
any conditions they face. 

Our purpose

To find out what matters to you and 
to help make sure your views shape 
the support you need.

Our approach

People’s views come first – especially 
those that find it hardest to be heard. 
We champion what matters to you 
and work with others to find solutions. 
We are independent and committed 
to making the biggest difference to 
you. 

People at the heart of everything we do
 
We play an important role bringing communities and services together. 
Everything we do is shaped by what people tell us. Our staff and volunteers 
identify what matters most to people by:

 » Visiting services to see how they work 

 » Running surveys and focus groups 

 » Going out in the community and working with 
other organisations 

 

Our main job is to raise people’s concerns with 
health and care decision-makers so that they can 
improve support across the country. The evidence 
we gather also helps us recommend how policy 
and practice can change for the better.

154



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 5

our year

Highlights from

155



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 6

Find out about our resources and the way we have engaged and 
supported more people in 2018-19. Our resources:

483 people shared their health and social 
care story. 

193 people accessed Healthwatch advice and 
information online or contacted us with 

questions about local support.

18 improvements we suggested were 
adopted by services to make health and care 

better in our community.

We have 35 volunteers helping to carry out 
our work. In total, they gave up 1045 of 

hours.

We visited 11 services and 165 community 
events to understand people’s experience of 

care. From these visits, we made 47 
recommendations for improvement.

9115 people engaged with us through our 
website and social media.

156



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 7

a difference

How we’ve made

157



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 8

Changes made to your community
 
Find out how sharing your views with your local Healthwatch has led to positive changes 
to health and social care services in Leicester and Leicestershire. We show when people 
speak up about what’s important, and services listen, care is improved for all. 

Take a look at an example of a local Healthwatch demonstrating how they have made a 
difference in their community.

Maternity Workstream 
Across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland there 
is a plan in place to transform and improve 
maternity and neonatal services. NHS organisations 
and local authorities are working together to put 
this plan into action. 

We have representation on both the Local 
Maternity Systems (LMS) Board and the Maternity 
Voices Partnership (MVP) Group. The LMS has a 
focus on delivering high quality, safe and 
sustainable maternity services and improved 
outcomes and experience for woman and their 
families. 

The MVP brings together new mums and their 
families from across Leicester, Leicestershire and 
Rutland to create a new social space where they 
can meet other mums and discuss their experience 
before, during and after birth with the people 
directly involved in the running of the services. 
There are currently 18 members of the group. 
Regular meetings are held, and a virtual group has 
been set up so that the people who are unable to 
meet in person can feed into discussions. 

Some of the achievements of the MVP: 

 » Attendance at a regional event to meet other 
MVPs within the region. 

 » A local leaflet was developed and devised to 
advertise our Maternity Voices Partnership- 
distributed through several avenues including 
‘walking the patch’. 

 » A ‘frequently asked questions’, ‘terms of 
reference’ and an ‘MVP one pager’ was 
developed. 

 » Advertised our MVP on the UHL Maternity 
Services website, Facebook pages for the birth 
centres, leaflets distributed within the hospitals, 
children’s centre, through word of mouth and 
the Leicester City CCG website. 

 » We hold bi-monthly meetings in children’s 
centres (requested by the users that attend). 

 » The MVP attends a regional forum which meets 
every six months to share practice and tips, 
usually with user representation as well as our 
communications and engagement team. 

 » Good engagement from the Head of Midwifery 
and hospital trust.  

 » Healthwatch engagement and presence at all 
our meetings. 

 » Engagement from the Perinatal Mental Health 
team and Public Health with our MVP to develop 
their pathways and actively engage with our 
users and co-produce our services locally.  

We have also been commissioned by the MVP to 
organise an away day for the members to celebrate 
the achievements of the group, to show 
appreciation for their engagement and enable 
them to meet the wider MVP team.

158



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 9

Public views of access to GPs 
in Leicester and 
Leicestershire  
 
Building on the survey work completed by 
Healthwatch Leicestershire (Your views about GP 
services – Nov 2017) we wanted to understand the 
public support for how GP services will change in 
the coming years.  A survey was created by 
Healthwatch Leicester and Healthwatch 
Leicestershire to gather people’s experiences of 
accessing GP services.  

Our overarching aims were to assess; access to 
appointments, patient choice and to look at ways 
to improve the service for patients.  During July – 
September 2018, we attended meetings, festivals 
and events across the city and county to speak to 
people about their GP services and to complete 
the survey.  

The survey was made available online and 
cascaded to all Healthwatch contacts and other 
networks. The survey was also promoted via social 
media. 211 surveys were completed. 

Key Findings 
Booking appointments was predominantly carried 
out by telephone with almost 75% of respondents 
using telephone booking. Perhaps as a result of 
the dominance of telephone booking, 
improvements to the telephone systems of 
practices were a common theme suggested by 
respondents with comments about being cut off 
and being on hold for long periods of time. There 
were also comments about the difficulties of 
getting through and then there being no 
appointments left.  

There was a relative lack of online booking and 
suggested improvements were around making 
more appointments available including next day 
appointment. 45% of respondents said that they 
were not offered a choice of practitioner when 
they booked an appointment, but continuity of 
care was an area for improvement for a number of 
respondents, particularly in relation to those with 
ongoing health conditions such as mental health 
concerns.  

continued on next page

“Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire have 
been extremely supportive of Leicester, 

Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR) Maternity 
Voices Partnership (MVP). They have supported 

the MVP through excellent representation by 
Healthwatch at all MVP meetings as well working 

in partnership with Leicester City Clinical 
Commissioning Group to deliver a Team Building 

Day for the valued users or our MVP. Gemma 
Barrow has been brilliant with her engagement 

with our MVP.” 

Jasmine Cajee - Midwife Programme Support 
Officer for Better Births

159



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 10

Although 62% of respondents said that they were 
either completely satisfied or satisfied with their 
practice opening times, there were some that 
raised opening times as an area for improvement. 
Suggestions were generally in relation to 
practices being open for longer in the evenings 
and opening at weekends in order to 
accommodate the working patterns of some 
patients and make appointments more 
accessible.  

When accessing out of hours primary care, 
respondents opted for a range of services. 
Promisingly less than 5% said that they would 
turn to A&E rather than using another primary 
care service.  

Improvements suggested by respondents other 
than in relation to the process of booking 
appointments or accessing a preferred 
practitioner covered a range of issues, including 
increasing staff at all levels to improve services, 
providing better training for reception staff to 
provide better customer service and 
environmental improvements such as increased 
car parking. 

The report findings were shared with the CCGs 
and GP Practices across Leicester and 
Leicestershire. 

We developed a poster to be displayed in all GP 
Practices highlighting our findings. 

Have your say
 
Share your ideas and experiences and help 
services hear what works, what doesn’t, and 
what you want from care in the future. 
 
w: www.healthwatchll.com 
t: 0116 2518313 
e: enquiries@healthwatchll.com

 “We valued the support that Healthwatch 
Leicester and Leicestershire provided to health 

and care partners to involve patients, carers, staff 
and the public in the redesign of community 

services.  Their expertise in gathering insights and 
experiences from people and understanding what 

matters, means we have a reach seam of 

qualitative information, that is helping us to 
shape and improve the health and care services 

delivered.”

Sue Venables - Head of Communications, 
Engagement and Involvement for Better Care 
Together 

160



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 11

the answers

Helping you find

161



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 12

What services do people want to know about?
 
People don’t always know how to get the information they need to make 
decisions about their own health and care. Healthwatch plays an important 
role in providing advice and pointing people in the right direction for the 
support they need.

Here are the most common things that people ask us:

15% Hospitals

27% Social Care
36% Other issues

22% GP services

162



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 13

Charles’s story :
 
I was really worried that my brother was going to 
be moved to a hospital far away from my family 
and I was worried that there was nothing we could 
do to stop it. So, I contacted Healthwatch 
Leicestershire to find out what my options might 
be. 

Winter Health Messages  
We identified winter health messages as one of 
our work priorities. We wanted to consider the 
messages that members of the public have seen 
and their effectiveness in supporting people to 
look after their health in winter. 

Three focus groups were undertaken during 
December 2018 and January 2019, with two being 
undertaken in Leicester City Centre and one taking 
place in Loughborough.  

Focus groups were chosen as they give an 
opportunity to explore the experiences and 
opinions of the participants in more depth than is 
possible using quantitative survey methods.  Over 
the three focus groups there were 17 participants.  

Some of the themes discussed were flu 
vaccinations, keeping warm and the use of 
pharmacies.  The most common themes that 
participants discussed related to the flu vaccine. 
This suggests that the messages about having the 
vaccine have been amongst the most effective 
winter health messages.  

Finding the right care or support can 
be worrying and stressful. There a 
number of organisations that can 
provide help, but people don’t know 
where to look. Last year we helped 
193 people access the advice and 
information they need.

You can come to us for advice and information in 
a number of ways including:

 » Specific advice and information blogs online

 » Our contact us form 

 » At community events

 » Promoting helpful services across our social 
media channels

 » Over the phone

How we provide people with advice and information

‘Thanks to Healthwatch Leicestershire for 
your advice and I’m glad it was sorted out at 

the first point of call, but I’m also pleased that 
you provided further options for us if that 

wasn’t successful.’

However, participants raised issues that suggest 
that whilst the message about having the flu 
vaccine has been broadly effective there are other 
issues with the information that the public receive 
about the flu vaccine. Participants spoke of past 
campaigns that they were aware of including ‘keep 
warm, keep well’. Keeping warm was a key point 
for participants in terms of what they could do to 
keep well in the winter, and most were aware that 
there was an optimum temperature for their 
homes to be kept to.  

The use of pharmacies instead of the GP in the first 
instance was recognised as a message that a 
number of participants had seen and acted upon. 
However, the feedback on their experiences of 
using the pharmacists instead of the GP was mixed.  

163



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 14

Library Drop-Ins – Leicester 
City 
Leicester City Council has a total of 22 Libraries 
across the City one for each of the 22 wards they 
have in the City.

During the months of October – December 2018 
we visited and held Drop-Ins at all 22 libraries 
Some of them were stand-alone libraries but with 
the decline in the interests in libraries over the last 
20 years and the increases in technology, a lot of 
the libraries have now been incorporated into 
Leisure and Community Centres across the City.

One particular Library in Leicester which has a bit 
of a following is what they call the “Pork Pie 
Library” which sits on the edge of two of the largest 
council estates in Leicester City and is a classic 
1930’s style building now recognised as a listed 
building along with another which is in another 
area of the city called St Barnabas Library.

At more than one there were groups of people 
who meet there on a regular basis whom we had 

good conversations with and whilst promoting 
Healthwatch, also picked up some issue, mainly 
around their local GPs.

With Leicester being such a diverse City, we met 
lots of people from different communities all with 
different experiences. The most prolific in terms of 
numbers was the City Centre Library where we 
met with more than 20 people, but generally we 
would engage with anything from 6 up to 20 over 
the time we would be there.

Every Leicester City Library now has Healthwatch 
information available.

Are you looking for help?
 
If you have a query about a health and social 
care service, or need help with where you can 
go to access further support, get in touch. Don’t 
struggle alone. Healthwatch is here for you.  
 
w: www.healthwatchll.com 
t: 0116 2518313 
e: enquiries@healthwatchll.com

164



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 15

Our volunteers

165



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 16

Volunteers work with local 
services to highlight patient 
concerns with GP services 

Following on from several concerns raised by 
members of the public, Healthwatch working 
alongside the quality team of the Clinical 
Commissioning Group in Leicester City 
undertook a visit to talk to patients based at a 
City GP practice. Through speaking to patients, 
we were able to identify several improvements 
– from changes to the telephone service used 
to changes to the waiting area of the practice. 

At Healthwatch Leicester and 
Leicestershire we couldn’t make all 
of these improvements without the 
support of our 35 volunteers that 
work with us to help make care 
better for their communities. 

 » Raise awareness of the work we do in the 
community 

 » Visit services to make sure they’re meeting 
people’s needs

 » Support our day to day running e.g. 
governance

 » Collect people’s views and experiences which 
we use in our reports

How do our volunteers help us?

166



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 17

Kim
 
My name is Kim Marshal-Nichols I started 
volunteering many moons ago and I have been 
with Healthwatch since the change over from 
Local involvement Networks (LINks – 
Healthwatch predecessor) in Leicester 2010 I 
enjoy my role as an Authorised Rep and like the 
way in which it has evolved over the last 13 
months with the Engaging Community 
Staffordshire take over, which collected 
Leicestershire en route, it has enriched my role 
making it challenging and rewarding, I love 
speaking to people and I certainly do that I 
engage with people from 16 - 101 ! On a regular 
basis, and sometimes my team friends have to 
drag me away! I have made many friends 
volunteering and would encourage everyone 
to do it. 

It certainly has enriched my life.

Mark 
 
I have always been driven by wanting to help other 
people to have their say about public services.  As 
a Healthwatch Board Member, it is my role to 
represent the views of service users, carers, family 
and friends to NHS and Social Care.  At a strategic 
level, I am currently involved with Leicestershire 
Partnership NHS Trust and the Learning 
Partnership Board for the City. 

Leicestershire and Leicester are very diverse 
communities, so I am also driven by wanting to 
help engage traditionally unheard communities 
have their say, for example, championing the voice 
of LGTBQI people or those experiencing social 
isolation due to rural poverty.   I work to ensure 
those voices are heard and what they say is acted 
upon. 

In my role at Healthwatch, I can effect positive 
changes to NHS policies and services. I really enjoy 
getting out and about to meet people to better 
understand what they want from service providers, 
policy setters and commissioners.  Volunteering 
with Healthwatch has therefore given me a positive 
boost to my self-confidence and self-worth.  

We caught up with a couple of our fantastic volunteers to show you how 
their work truly makes a difference to the lives of people in our area.

Meet our volunteers

Volunteer with us
 
Are you feeling inspired? We are always on the 
lookout for more volunteers. If you are 
interested in volunteering get in touch at 
Leicester and Leicestershire.  
 
w: www.healthwatchll.com 
t: 0116 2518313 
e: enquiries@healthwatchll.com

Kim Marshal-Nichols 

Mark Farmer

167



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 18

‘The views and stories 
you share with us are 
helping to make care 
better for our local 
community’
Mike Smith 
Healthwatch Volunteer

168



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 19

Our finances

169



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 20

To help us carry out our work, we 
are funded by our local authority. In 
2018-19 we spent £296,665.

We also received £3,354 of 
additional income from other 
sources.

How we use our money

£3,354 Additional income 

£227,267How much we 
pay our staff

£303,011 Total 
Income

£296,665 Total 

expenditure

£48,429 Our operational 
costs

£299,657  Funding received  
from local authority

£20,969 How much it costs 
to run our Healthwatch

170



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 21

next year

Our plans for

171



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 22

Looking back

Through 2018-19 has been an “interesting” year 
with delivering two Healthwatch contracts and 
acting on behalf of patients in the two very different 
areas. This was coupled with moving to a different 
way of working under Engaging Communities 
Staffordshire, however through the hard work and 
effort of our Advisory Board, Authorised 
Representatives and staff team we have maintained 
and built on the work of the separate Healthwatch 
organisations. 

Looking ahead

Our role of the voice of local people is only going 
to be more important as the pace of service review 
and change. As well as the voice we need to act as 
the eyes and ears of the public and ensure they are 
kept up to date with how changes will affect their 
“patient experience”

Often, we are challenging Health and Care services 
to set clearer expectations to those using services. 
Some areas of focus for us next year will be – 

 » Community Mental Health Services

 » What does “Social Prescribing” mean to the 
person on the street?

 » Personal Budgets – Have they improved the 
lives of those on the

Barriers and opportunities

With a changing staff team, it has been difficult to 
build up the momentum we would have hoped but 
we have been lucky to have had wonderful team 
members. They have moved onto new pastures 
and we wish them the very best in the future. 

A challenge going forward is to ensure we keep a 
constructive and meaningful relationship with 
those delivering, commissioning and scrutinising 
services. As we hear more from patients and their 
families about how services are struggling, we 
need to make sure their lived experience is passed 
on in the most effective way possible.

As the services change, we are presented with the 
biggest barrier as well as the biggest opportunity, 
to ensure we are in the right place to have the 
biggest impact. 

Thank you 

To our Advisory Board – Harsha Kotecha (Chair), 
Mark Farmer, Shireen Bharuchi, Rita Patel and 
Colin Norman (Resigned). I would like to thank 
them for their continued efforts in representing 
the public in an ever-growing number of meetings, 
absorbing all the different issues raised by 
members of the public and turning that into 
priorities. 

To our Authorised Representatives – Who have 
taken the change of pace and deliver of Enter and 
View visits in their stride. They have done 
everything we’ve asked of them and more. 

To our staff team – TUPE’d or not TUPE’d…that is 
the question. Well not quite but to all staff members 
who have moved across into the new contract and 
to those who have joined us since then. It is only 
through their passion and commitment to what 
Healthwatch can achieve and how much they care 
about patient and public involvement that we 
have delivered what we have this year. Each one is 
a credit to our ongoing mission. 

Message from our Manager

Micheal Smith  
Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire

172



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 23

Thank you to everyone that is helping 
us put people at the heart of health 
and social care, including:

 » Members of the public who shared their views 
and experience with us

 » All of our amazing staff and volunteers

 » The voluntary organisations that have 
contributed to our work

 » We want to thank everyone across the Health 
and social care services and the voluntary 
sector who have supported us in our work

Thank you

“Healthwatch in Leicester and 
Leicestershire has established a strong 

and productive working relationship 
with the University Hospitals of Leicester 

in many different ways in 2018-19. 

Be it through the regular meetings 
between senior UHL board members to 

share the lived patient experience or 
across the table in scrutiny meetings 

challenging how services are changing 
across Health and Social Care services. 

Healthwatch in Leicester and 
Leicestershire continues to act in the best 

interested of patients and the public. 
Their meaningful contribution to shaping 

and influencing local services 
demonstrates why patient and public 

involvement remains so important in the 
times ahead. “

Mark Wightman - Director of Strategy 
and Communications  University 
Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust

173



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 24

Address and contatct as of 31/03/2019.

 » Contact number: 0116 2518313

 » Email address: enquiries@healthwatchll.com

 » Social media: @HealthwatchLeic

 » Website: www.healthwatchll.com 

Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire  

Clarence House

46 Humberstone Gate

Leicester 

LE1 3PJ

Contract holder’s address and contact details of as 
of 31/03/2019.

Engaging Communities Staffordshire CIC (ECS)

Unit 42, Staffordshire University Business Village 

Dyson Way 

Stafford 

ST18 0TW

 » Contact number: 01785 887809

 » Email address: www.ecstaffs.co.uk  

We confirm that we are using the Healthwatch 
Trademark (which covers the logo and Healthwatch 
brand) when undertaking work on our statutory 
activities as covered by the licence agreement. 

If you need this in an alternative format please 
contact us.

© Copyright (Healthwatch Leicester and 
Leicestershire) 2019

Contact us

174



Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire 25175



www.healthwatchll.com 
t: 0116 2518313  
e:enquires@healthwatchll.com  
tw: @HealthwatchLeic 

Healthwatch Leicester and Leicestershire

Clarence House

46 Humberstone Gate

Leicester

LE1 3PJ

176


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 30 May 2019 and Action Log.
	July2019HWBBActionLog

	5 Development of Primary Care Networks Across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland.
	PCN Structure WLCCG
	PCN Structure ELRCCG
	Appendix - LLR's PCN Structure

	6 Integrated Community Workstream and Community Services Redesign.
	7 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment - Air Quality and Health.
	8 Strategic Partnership Board Update.
	9 Progress of the Health and Social Care Sector Growth Plan 2017-2020.
	Appendix - Growth Plan 2017 - 2020

	10 Better Care Fund Plan 2019/20.
	Appendix A - BCF Expenditure Plan 2019-21
	Appendix B - BCF Metrics June 2019
	Appendix C - BCF Plan on a Page

	12 New Multi- Agency Children's Safeguarding Arrangements.
	Appendix -  Multi-Agency Safeguarding Arrangements Design Document

	13 County Lines and Child Criminal Exploitation.
	14 Actions Arising from the Agreed Outcomes of the Health and Wellbeing Board Development Session Held on 30 November 2018.
	Appendix - Workshop Action Plan

	15 Healthwatch Leicestershire Annual Review.
	Annual report 2018-19


